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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 16™ (Sixteenth) Annual General Meeting of the Members of Sundew
Properties Limited will be held on Thursday, June 23, 2022 at 03.15 p.m. at the Registered Office of
the Company situated at Mindspace, Cyberabad, S. No. 64(Part), Next to VSNL Building, Hitech City,
Madhapur, Hyderabad — 500081 to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business:

1. To receive, consider, approve and adopt the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the
Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2022, together with the Reports of the Board
of Directors and Statutory Auditors thereon; ’

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Ravi Chandru Raheja (DIN: 00028044}, who retires by
rotation, and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

Special Business:

3. ' To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification the following resolution as
an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and all other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 (including any statutory modification{s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force),
the consent of the members of the Company, be and is hereby accorded to pay remuneration to
Chirag Trilok Shah & Co., Cost Accountants, (Membership No. 23277), Firm Registration No. 004442,
appointed as Cost Auditor by the Board of Directors of the Company for the financial year 2022-2023
up to an amount not exceeding Rs. 60,000/- (Rupees Sixty Thousand only) excluding out of pocket
expenses and applicable taxes, if any.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company, be and are hereby severally
authorised to do all acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary to give effect to this
resolution.”

By Order of the Board of Directors,
Eor Sundew Properties Limited,

Pooja Karia
Company Secretary
Membership No.: A21076

Date: May 11, 2022
Place: Mumbai
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Copy to:
1. Diractors of the Company

2.

Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP, Statutory Auditor

3. Manish Ghia & Associates, Secretarial Auditor

Notes:

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND, VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO
ATTEND, AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND A PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE
COMPANY. }

/ o

2. AN INSTRUMENT APPOINTING A PROXY IS ENCLOSED HEREWITH AND IT SHOULD BE DEPOSITED
AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT LESS THAN FORTY-EIGHT HOURS BEFORE
THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING.

3. THE EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013,
RELATING TO THE SPECIAL BUSINESS IS ENCLOSED HEREWITH.

4. ATTENDANCE SLIP IS ENCLOSED HEREWITH. MEMBERS/PROXIES ARE REQUIRED TO CARRY
ATTENDANCE SLIP AT THE MEETING.

5. CORPORATE MEMBERS INTENDING TO SEND THEIR AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE TO ATTEND

AND VOTE AT THE MEETING ARE REQUESTED TO ENSURE THAT THE AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE CARRIES A DULY CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE BOARD RESOLUTION, POWER
OF ATTORNEY OR SUCH OTHER VALID AUTHORIZATIONS UNDER THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013,
AUTHORIZING THEM TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING. IN TERMS OF THE PROVISIONS
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, THE REPRESENTATIVES OF CORPORATE MEMBERS WITHOUT
PROPER AUTHORIZATION, SUCH AS BOARD RESOLUTION OR POWER OF ATTORNEY OR SUCH
OTHER VALID AUTHORIZATION, MAY NOT BE ABLE TO ATTEND THE MEETING.
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION RELATING TO THE ORDINARY BUSINESS

Itemno, 2

Mr. Ravi Chandru Raheja, Director of the Company is liable to retire by rotation and being eligible,

offers himself for re-appointment.

Details of Director seeking re-appointment pursuant to Secretarial Standard - 2 on General Meetings:

remuneration last drawn

Name Ravi Chandru Raheja

DIN 00028044

Age 50 years

Qualification MBA from London Business School
Experience Over 20 years

Terms and conditions of re-appointment N.A.

Details of remuneration to be paid and | N.A.

(Mr. Ravi C. Raheja shall be paid sitting fees)

Date of first appointment on the Board

August 11, 2006

Shareholding in the company

1 share held jointly with Mindspace Business
Parks REIT, in the capacity of nominee of
Mindspace Business Parks REIT

attended during the year

Relationship with other Directors, Manager | Mr. Ravi Raheja and Mr. Neel Raheja are
and other Key Managerial Personnel of the | brothers.

Company

The number of Meetings of the Board | 6 (Six)

Other Directorships, Membership /
Chairmanship of Committees of other Boards

As tabulated below

1) Directorships on other Board:

Sr. Name of Companies / | Nature of Interest or | % of | Date on which interest or
No. Bodies Corporate | concern / change in | the concern arose / changed
(Indian as well as | interest or concern | Paid-Up
Overseas) (Whether Director / | Capital
I | Managing Director) s
1. Chalet Hotels Ltd. Director 2.52 Date on which interest arose:
04/09/1995
Date on which interest was
N - last changed: 29/09/2021
2. Genext Hardware & | Director 29.48 03/03/2006
Parks Pvt. Ltd. | . -
3. Inorbit Malls (India) | Director 0.07 27/05/2004 -
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2) Memberships/Chairmanships in Committees:
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4, Intime Properties Ltd. | Nominee Director 0.00 Date on which interest arose:
22/08/2006
Date on which interest was
- last changed: 25/09/2020
5. Ivory Properties And | Director 6.00 12/12/1996
Hotels Pvt. Ltd. I
6. K. Raheja Corp Pvt. | Director 9.05 12/12/1996
ltd. o -
74 K.Raheja IT  Park | Nominee Director 0.00 Date on which interest arose:
(Hyderabad) Ltd. 02/06/2003
! Date on which interest was
I last changed: 25/09/2020
8. K. Raheja Pvt.Ltd. | Director 8.13 02/02/1993 L
9. Shoppers Stop Ltd. Director 1.15 Date on which interest arose:
16/06/1997
Date on which interest was
: last changed: 23/12/2021
10. Sundew Properties | Nominee Director 0.00 Date on which interest arose:
Ltd. 11/08/2006
Date on which interest was
| |lastchanged: 25/09/2020
11. Support Properties | Director 0.00 Date on which interest arose:
Private Limited 18/12/2015
Date on which interest was
last changed: 27/12/2021
12. Trion Properties Pvt. | Director 0.04* 23/01/2020
— Ltd' —— — S— S— —
13. Whispering  Heights | Director 19.00 13/10/2016
Real Estate Private
Limited I - N

| Company

Name of the

Shoppers Sto p_Ltd._

K. Raheja IT Park
(Hyderabad) Ltd.

Name of the Committee Position Held
e | (Chairman / Member)

e Stakeholders Relationship Committee | e Chairman

e Audit & Risk Management Committee | ® Member

e Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) | ¢ Chairman
Committee

e Audit Committee e Member

e Nomination Remuneration | ¢ Member
Committee B
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3 Sundew Properties | » Audit Committee e Member

Ltd. e Nomination and Remuneration | ¢ Member
S " S— _Committee
4 Intime Properties Ltd. o Audit Committee e Member

e Nomination and Remuneration | ¢ Member
e gy — | Committee - 'l
5 Chalet Hotels Ltd. e Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee | ¢ Member
e Audit Committee e Member

6 Inorbit Malls (India) | e Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) | ® Member
" = Pvt Ltd. Committee
i Ivory Properties And | e Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) | ¢ Member

Hotels Private Ltd. Committee ’
8 Trion Properties Pvt. | o Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) | ¢ Member
| L, Committee _
9. Genext Hardware & | e Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) | ® Member

Parks Pvt. Ltd. Committee
10, | K. Raheja Corp Pvt.| e Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) [ ¢ Member

ltd. - ~ Committee 1 el I LI
11. K Raheja Corp | e Stakeholders Relationship Committee | e Member

Investment Manager | « Nomination And  Remuneration | ® Member

LLP (acting as Committee

Investment Manager

of Mindspace Business

Parks REIT) .
12, K. Raheja  Private | o Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) | ¢ Member
| | Limited ] ~ Committee ol

Except Mr. Neel Raheja, by virtue of being related to Mr. Ravi Raheja, none of the other Directors,
Other Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested in this
resolution.

The Board recommends the Resolution at Item No. 2 of the accompanying Notice, in respect of re-
appointment of Mr. Ravi Raheja, Director of the Company, who is liable to retire by rotation and being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment, for approval of the members of the Company, as an
Ordinary Resolution.
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EXPLNATORY STA_TE_MEHT UNDER SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No. 3:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Act, the Company is required to have the audit of its
cost records conducted by a Cost Accountant in Practice. The Board of Directors have approved the
appointment of Chirag Trilok Shah & Co, Cost Accountants, (Membership No. 23277), Firm
Registration No. 004442 as the Cost Auditor of the Company to conduct audit of cost records
maintained by the Company for the Financial Year 2022-2023, at a remuneration not exceeding Rs
60,000/- (Rupees Sixty Thousand Only), excluding any out-of-pocket expenses and applicable taxes.
Mr. Chirag Shah has furnished a certificate regarding his eligibility for appointment as,Cost Auditor of
the Company. . ! ’

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives are, in any way, concerned or
interested in this resolution.

The Board recommends the Resolution at Item No. 3 of the accompanying Notice in respect of Cost
Auditors’ remuneration for FY 2022-2023, for approval by the members of the Company, as an
Ordinary Resolution.

By Order of the Board of Directors,
erties Limited,

Pooja Karia ,
Company Secretary
Membership No.: A21076

Date: May 11, 2022
Place: Mumbai
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
To,
The Members,
Sundew Properties Limited
Your Directors are pleased to present their 16™ (Sixteenth) Annual Report on the business and
operations of the Company and the audited financial statement for the financial year ended on March

31, 2022 (“the year under review” or “the year” or “FY22”).

1. Financial summary or highlights/Performance of the Company

The Company’s financial performance for the financial year ended on March 31, 2022, is summarized
below:

(Rs. In Mns)
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Gross Income 4,650 3,836
| Profit Before Interest and Depreciation - 4,000 3,262
f_F_inance Charges S 686 931
Gross Profit 3,314 2,331
Provision for Depreciation . 391 325
‘Net Profit Before Tax el cou b 2,923 2006
Provision for Tax 869 362
Net Profit After Tax 2,054 1,644
Other comprehensive Income — Remeasurements of 0 (0)
defined benefit asset
Balance of Profit brought forward 2,760 2,528
Balance available for appropriation 4,705 4,172
Dividend paid during the year 2,530 1,412
Tax on Dividend = -
Surplus carried to Balance Sheet 2,175 2,760
2. Dividend
Final Dividend:

Since the Company has distributed four interim dividends, your Directors do not recommend any final
dividend for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2022.
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Interim Dividend

Details of interim dividend paid during the financial year ended March 31, 2022 is as follows:

JQuarter for Date of the meeting of |Percentage of |Aggregate amount of Interim
which interim |declaration of interim |interim dividend (Rs. In Mns.)
dividend Declared dividend dividend

Q1 June 22, 2021 277% 780 {Seven hundred and eighty)

Q2 September 28, 2021 249% 700 (Seven hundred)

Q3 December 23, 2021 195% 550 (Fifty hundred and fifty)
Q4 March 25,2022  |178% 500 (Fifty hundred) _
3. Reserves

Your directors do not propose to transfer any amount to Reserves for the year under review.

4. Brief description of the Company’s working during the year / State of Company’s affair

There is no change in the nature of the business of Company during the year under review. Mindspace
REIT, registered with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) under SEBI (Real Estate Investment
Trust) Regulations 2014, is the holder of 89% (eighty nine Percent) equity shares of the Company with the
rest 11% (eleven percent) being held by Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure Corporation (TSIC). The
Company is a joint venture company within the meaning of Rule 4 (2) of the Companies (Appointment and
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014.

After a subdued 2020, the leasing activity of Grade A commercial office space gathered momentum in
2021. Net absorption across the top 6 cities of India in calendar year 2021 was 18.8 million square feet
recording a growth of 21% YoY. Supply across top 6 markets in the same period was 35.5 million square
feet recording a growth of 4% YoY. The vacancy levels increased from 12.8% at the end of 2020 to 15.1%
at the end of calendar year 2021.!

During the financial year 2021-22, gross leasing of 0.4 million square feet was achieved by the Company,
which was pertaining to releasing of existing area. In respect of under construction building for 0.13
million square feet, Occupation Certificate was received in May 2021.

Diversification of the tenant mix, building on tenant relationships to retain existing tenants and attracting
new tenants to our parks, digitization of operations and re-energizing parks to support the business and
growth needs of our tenants, and implementation of health and safety protocols remains the key priority.
The wide coverage of COVID-19 vaccination drive including the booster dose coupled with lifting of
restrictions has enabled a return to normalcy. We believe the long-term fundamentals of Grade A office
space remain intact. With organizations commencing to implement safe return to work policies in a

! Source: Cushman & Wakefield
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phased manner and employees start coming back to office, India’s Grade A offices are anticipated to be
the foremost beneficiaries of the demand surge.

5. Details of Subsidiary / Joint Ventures / Associate Companies

The Company does not have any Subsidiary / Joint Venture / Associate Company.

6. Deposits

The Company has not invited / accepted any deposits from the public during the financial year ended on
March 31, 2022,

7. Share Capital

The Company has only one type of shares — equity shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each. The Authorised
Share Capital of the Company as on March 31, 2022, is Rs. 28,20,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty-Eight Crore
Twenty Lakh only) divided into 2,82,00,000 (Two Crore Eighty-Two Lakh) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each.

The Company’s Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital as on March 31, 2022, is Rs. 28,17,06,500/- (Rupees
Twenty-Eight Crore Seventeen Lakh Six Thousand and Five Hundred only) comprising of 2,81,70,650 (Two
Crore Eighty-One Lakh Seventy Thousand Six Hundred and Fifty) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid-

up.
There has been no increase / decrease in share capital of the Company during the year under review.

8. Issue of Listed, Rated, Unsecured, Non-cumulative, taxable, Transferable, Redeemable Non-
Convertible Debentures (“Non- Convertible Debentures”)

During the year under review, 4,000 (Four Thousand) listed, rated, secured, non-cumulative, taxable,
transferable, redeemable non-convertible debentures (‘NCDs’) of face value of Rs. 10,00,000/- (Rupees
Ten Lakhs Only) each, amounting to an aggregate principal amount of INR 4,00,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees
Four Hundred Crores Only) were issued vide approval of the Board granted at its meeting held on August
12, 2021 and approval of the members vide special resolution passed at their meeting held on August 23,
2021. The NCDs were allotted at the Finance Committee meeting held on September 28, 2021 and listing
approval for the same was received on October 01, 2021. The redemption date of the NCDs is June 28,
2024,

9. Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Pursuant to Regulation 18(3)(b) of SEBI (Real Estate Investment Trust) Regulations, 2014, during the
financial year 2021-22, Mr. Ravi Raheja, Mr. Neel Raheja, Ms. Preeti Chheda and Mr. Vinod Rohira
continued to act as Nominee Director(s) of the Company for Mindspace Business Parks REIT, of which the
Company is a Special Purpose vehicle (SPV).
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The composition of the Board of Directors as on March 31, 2022, is as below:
Name of the Direct; Designation - ] DIN
Mr. Ravi Chandru Raheja Nominee Director 00028044
Mr. Neel Chandru Raheja Nominee Director 00029010
Mr. Vinod Nandlal Rohira Nominee Director | 00460667
Mr. Venkat Narsimha Reddy Ettireddy Director | 06863725
Ms. Preeti Chheda Nominee Director | 08066703

Mr. Ravi Raheja, Mr. Neel Raheja, Mr. Vinod Rohira and Ms. Preeti Chheda are liable to retire by rotation
whereas Mr. Venkat Narsimha Reddy, representing the Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure
Corporation is not liable to retire by rotation. Further at the ensuing Annual General Meeting, Mr. Ravi C
Raheja (DIN: 00028044) is liable to retire by rotation under Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
being eligible offers himself for re-appointment.

Ms. Pooja Karia was appointed as Company Secretary of the Company w.e.f. March 25, 2022 pursuant to
resignation of Ms. Saadiya Naidu w.e.f. closure of business hours on February 18, 2022. The Key
Managerial Personnel of the Company as on March 31, 2022 are as follows:

Name of the Director

“Mr. Venna Narayana Reddy
Ms. Swetha Jujjavarapu
Ms. Pooja Karia

Designation _'
Chief Executive Officer (CEC) |
Chief Financial Officer (CFO) I

i

Company Secretary (CS)

The Company being a joint venture company within the meaning of Rule 4 (2) of the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, it is not required to appoint Independent
Directors in terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

10. Meetings of the Board of Directors

During the financial year 2021-22, 10 (Ten) meetings of the Board of Directors were held on May 12, 2021,
June 22, 2021, July 30, 2021, August 11 2021 adjourned to August 12, 2021, September 28, 2021,
November 11, 2021, December 23, 2021, December 30, 2021, February 9, 2022 and March 25, 2022
respectively.

11. Audit Committee

During the financial year 2021-22, 5 (Five) meetings of the Audit Committee were held on May 12, 2021,
August 11, 2021, September 24, 2021, November 11, 2021 and February 9, 2022.

During the year under review, the audit committee was reconstituted by inducting Mr. Vinod Rohira as a
member which was approved at the Board meeting held on November 11, 2021. The current
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composition of the Committee is as follows:

Mr. Ravi C. Raheja
Mr. Neel C. Raheja
Ms. Preeti Chheda
Mr. Vinod Rohira

= DN =

12. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Board of Directors had on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
framed a Policy for selection and appointment of Directors, senior management and their remuneration,
which is displayed on the website of the company, https://sundewproperties.com. As on date the
Company is not paying any remuneration to its Directors apart from sitting fees.

During the financial year ended on March 31, 2022, 2 (Two) meetings of the Committee were held on
May 12, 2021 and March 24, 2022. The current composition of the Committee is as follows:

1. Mr. Ravi C. Raheja
2. Mr. Neel C. Raheja
3. Mr. Vinod Rohira

13. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies {Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee has been
constituted by the Board of Directors of the Company. The Board pursuant to the recommendation of the
CSR Committee, approved and adopted a revised CSR Policy in accordance with the amendments to
Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder which the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs (MCA) notified on January 22, 2021. The Corporate Social policy was further revised on
May 12, 2021 for administrative convenience.

During the financial year ended on March 31, 2022, 3 (Three) meetings of the CSR Committee were held
on May 12, 2021, September 28, 2021 and December 23, 2021. The current composition of the CSR
Committee is as follows:

Mr. Neel C. Raheja

Mr. Vinod Rohira

Mr. Venkat Narsimha Reddy Ettireddy
Ms. Preeti Chheda

> N [N

The CSR Committee confirms that the implementation and monitoring of the CSR Expenditure are in
compliance with the CSR Policy of the Company, which is displayed on the Company’s website
https://sundewproperties.com. The Company’s annual report on CSR is annexed herewith as Annexure - I.
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14. Finance Committee

For ease of administration the Board of Directors has constituted ‘Finance Committee’ and authorized the
same with inter-alia investment and borrowing powers. During the year under review, the Finance
committee was reconstituted by the Board by inducting Mr. Vinod Rohira at its meeting held on
November 11, 2021. The current composition of the Finance Committee is as follows:

Mr. Ravi C. Raheja
Mr. Neel C. Raheja
Mr. Vinod Rohira

Ms. Preeti Chheda

£

During the year under review nine (9) meetings of Finance Committee were held on April 30, 2021, July
30, 2021, August 10, 2021, September 3, 2021, September 18, 2021, September 23, 2021, September 28,
2021, November 8, 2021 and January 21, 2022.

15. Conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo

The details of conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and
outgoduring the year is set out in Annexure — Il

16. Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties

All the related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year under review were on
arm’s length basis and in ordinary course of business of the Company. The details of material transactions
with related parties under form AOC-2 is provided herewith under Annexure-IIl.

17. Auditors

a. Statutory Auditor

Pursuant to Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held
onSeptember 26, 2018, the members of the Company had appointed M/s. Deloitte Haskins & Sells, LLP,
(firm registration no. — 117366W/ W-100018) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office
from the conclusion of the AGM held in 2018 till the conclusion of the AGM to be held in the year 2023
and will continue to be Statutory Auditors of the Company till their term expires.

The Auditor’s report for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 does not contain any reservation /
qualification or adverse remark which requires any explanation/clarification of the Board.

Further the Auditors of the Company have not reported any frauds under sub-section (12) of Section 143
ofthe Companies Act, 2013.
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b. Secretarial Auditor

Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed M/s. Manish Ghia &
Associates, Practising Company Secretaries to conduct Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial
year 2021-22. The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed herewith as Annexure - 1V,

The report of the Secretarial Auditor does not contain any reservation/qualification or adverse remark
whichrequires any explanation/clarification of the Board.

c. Cost Auditor

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with applicable rules made thereunder, the
Company is required to have the audit of its cost records conducted by a Cost Accountant. The Board of
Directors pursuant to recommendation of the Audit Committee has appointed Mr. Chirag Trilok Shah,
Cost Accountant, [Membership No. 23277] as the Cost Auditor of the Company to conduct cost audits for
relevant products prescribed under the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 for the financial
year ended March 31, 2022. Further the members at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on
June 23, 2021 approved the remuneration as recommended by the Board of Directors for financial year
2021-22. Mr. Chirag Trilok Shah has under Section 139(1) of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder
furnished a certificate of his eligibility and consent for appointment. The cost accounts and records of the
Company are duly prepared and maintained as required under Section 148{1) of Act.

d. Internal Auditor

Pursuant to Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has appointed M/s.
PricewaterhouseCoopers Private Limited, as the Internal Auditors of the Company for the financial year
2021-22 to conduct internal audit of the functions and activities of the Company. The Internal Auditors
have submitted their Internal Audit Report for the financial year 2021-22 and the said report does not
contain any adverse remarks.

18. Whistle Blower/ Vigil Mechanism

The Company recognizes the value of transparency and accountability in its administrative and
management practices. The Company promotes ethical behavior in all its business activities. The
Company has adopted a whistle blower policy and vigil mechanism with a view to provide a mechanism
for the Directors and employees of the Company to report any existing/probable violations of laws, rules,
regulations, policies or unethical conduct. A dedicated Whistle Blower Committee has been constituted
pursuant to the policy, which has met at suitable intervals during the year under review.

19. Annual Evaluation of Directors, Committees and Board

In compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 and pursuant to the Appointment and Remuneration Policy
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of the Company, the performance evaluation of the Board, its specified Committees, individual directors
and senior management was carried out for financial year 2021-22 for evaluating its performance and
effectiveness as well as that of its committees and directors. The exercise for the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and the Board was carried out through oral discussions covering the aspects,
such as Board composition and quality, strategy and risk management, board meetings and procedures.
Similarly, the performance of individual Directors was evaluated by all other Directors, through a feedback
questionnaire circulated to every Director, based on their participation at Board & Committee meetings
and contribution therein, relation with other Board Members and effectiveness of functioning,
understanding of governance etc. The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

20. Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments under Section 186

The Company, owing to nature of its business, qualifies for exemption available for companies providing
infrastructural facilities as specified under Section 186 (11) of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the
provisions of Section 186 of the Act are not applicable in respect of loans made, guarantees given and/or
securities provided by the Company. The Company has not made any investments pursuant to Section
186 during the financial year 2021-22.

21. Report on Sexual Harassment

As per the requirement of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition &
Redressal) Act, 2013 (“POSH Act”) and Rules framed thereunder, the Company has adopted a policy on
Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace and has constituted an Internal Complaints Committee to
deal with complaints / concerns relating to sexual harassment at workplace. The Company has complied
with the provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 during the year.

22. Risk Management

The Company is managing its risks through well-defined internal financial controls and risk management
framework to identify, assess and mitigate risks that may threaten the existence of the Company. The
Company has formulated frameworks for enhancing the effectiveness of financial and operating controls
(‘Internal Financial Controls’) and effective risk management (‘Enterprise Risk Management’} in the
Company. It identifies the components of risk evaluation and the principles based on which the controls
have been formulated.

The Board of Directors of the Company has designed Risk Management Policy to mitigate impact of
events, situations or circumstances which may lead to negative consequences on the Company's business
and define a structured approach to manage uncertainty and to make use of these in their decision
making. Key business risks and their mitigation are considered in the annual/strategic business plans and
in periodic management reviews.

CIN: U70102TG2006PLC050883
Regd. Office: Mindspace Cyberabad, S. No. 64(Part), Next to VSNL Building, Hitech City, Madhapur, Hyderabad,
Telangana-500081.Phone: +91-40-6628 0000, Fax No. +91-40-6628 0065
Website: https://sundewproperties.com




Sundew Properties Limited 1)

K RAHEJA
CORP

23. Anti-Corruption Policy

The Company has duly adopted an Anti-Corruption Policy to ensure that business of the Company is
conducted with highest legal and ethical standards and that all employees and other persons acting on
behalf of the Company uphold the commitment towards anti-corruption.

24. Internal Financial Controls

The Company has taken measures for the Internal Financial Controls which were carried out through
Internal Audit process which were established within the Company and also through appointing a
professional firm to carry out the analysis of effectiveness of the present controls. Based on the review,
the directors confirm that, for the preparation of the financial statements for the financial year ended
March 31, 2022, the applicable Accounting Standards have been followed. The Internal Financial Controls
related to Financial Statement are found to be adequate and no material weaknesses were noticed.

25. Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Interms of Section 134 (3)(c) read with Section 134(5) the Directors confirm that:

a. In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed
alongwith proper explanation relating to material departures;
b. The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the Company for
that period;

C. The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d. The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

e. The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

26. Material changes between the financial year ended on March 31, 2022 and the date of this Board
of Directors’ Report

Several organizations have announced plans to return to office in a phased manner. The park’s physical
occupancies are improving steadily. The Company has also collected over 99% of contracted rentals for
the financial year ended March 31, 2022. However, given the unpredictability of COVID-19 virus spread
and its effect, it is difficult to fully ascertain the future impact of any new COVID-19 wave on the business
of the Company at this juncture. There are no material changes affecting the business and financials
between the financial year ended on March 31, 2022 and the date of this Report.
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27. Status of application or proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code

During the year under review and as at March 31, 2022 neither was any application was made nor were
there any proceedings pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

28. The details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one-time
settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions along
with the reasons thereof

During the year under review, no such one-time settlement was done in respect of any loan taken by the
Company from Banks / Financial Institutions.

29. Annual return link

The annual return of the Company shall be placed on the website of the Company -
https://sundewproperties.com.

30. Disclosures

a. Disclosure of orders passed by regulators or courts or tribunal:

No orders have been passed by any regulator or court or tribunal which can have impact on the going
14

concern status and the Company’s operations in future.

b. Disclosure under Section 43(a)(ii} of the Companies Act, 2013:

The Company has not issued any shares with differential rights and hence no information as per
provisions of Section 43(a)(ii) of the Act read with Rule 4(4) of the Companies (Share Capital and
Debenture) Rules, 2014 is required to be furnished.

c. Disclosure under Section 54(1)(d) of the Companies Act, 2013:

The Company has not issued any sweat equity shares during the year under review and hence no
information as per provisions of Section 54(1)(d) of the Act read with Rule 8(13) of the Companies (Share
Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 is required to be furnished.

d. Disclosure under Section 62(1)(b) of the Companies Act,2013:

The Company has not issued any equity shares under Employees Stock Option Scheme during the year
under review and hence no information as per provisions of Section 62(1)(b) of the Act read with Rule
12(9) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 is required to be furnished.
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e. Disclosure under Section 67(3) of the Companies Act,2013:

During the year under review, there were no instances of non-exercising of voting rights in respect of
shares purchased directly by employees under a scheme pursuant to Section 67(3) of the Act read with
Rule 16(4) of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 therefore no disclosure in respect
thereof is required to be furnished.

f. Compliance with Secretarial Standards:

The Company has complied with applicable Secretarial Standards prescribed by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India.

31. Acknowledgements

We thank our business partners, suppliers, bankers and other stakeholders for their continued support
during the year and look forward to their continued support in the future.

We regret the loss of lives due to COVID-19 pandemic. We are deeply grateful and have immense respect
for every individual who risked their life and safety, to fight this pandemic.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Sundew Properties Limited

/:L R Ty \W _\1«\_ s

Place: Mumbai Preeti Chheda Vinod Rohira
Date: May 11, 2022 Director Director
DIN: 08066703 DIN: 00460667
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Annexure —|

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES

FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 2021-22

. | Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company

Company has framed the CSR Policy in |

compliance with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder as
amended

Composition of CSR Committee

&

Sl. | Name of Director Designation”

/ Number  of _Nun7beTofmeetings

No.

Nature
Directorship

of | meetings of CSR
Committee held
during the year

of CSR Committee
attended during the
year

Neel Chandru Ra_hé_ja -

| Nominee Director 3 2

" Vinod Nandlal Rohira

Nominee Director 3 3

Venkat _Narsin?\ha_—Reddy Director
Ettireddy

Preeti Naveen Chheda

IS s»zvle‘

Nominee Director 3 3

Provide the web-link where Composition of

CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects

approved by the board are disclosed on the
_website of the company

https://sundewproperties.com

Provide the details of Impact assessment of
CSR projects carried out in pursuance of
sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies
(Corporate Social responsibility Policy)
Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report)

Not Applicable, since the CSR obligation of
immediately preceding three financial years are
within the threshold limit provided for “Impact
Assessment” under Rule (8)(3) of Corporate Social
responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014.

5.

year, if any:

Sl. No. Financial Year

Amount available for set-off | Amount re-quired to be set- off for |
from preceding financial years (in Rs.) | the financial year, if any (in Rs})

Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies
(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial

Not Applicable

Average net profit of the company as per

section 135(5)

Rs. 1,59,74,50,985/-
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7. | (a) Two percent of average net_brofit ofthe | : | Rs. 3,19,49,020/-
Company as per Section 135(5)

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projectsor | : | Notapplicable
programmes or activities of the previous
financial years

(c) Amount required to be set off for the | : | Not applicable
o financial year, if any
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year | : | Rs. 3,19,49,020/-
(7a+7b- 7c)

8. | (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total amount Amount Unspent (in Rs.) |
spent for the | Total Amount transferred to | Amount transferred to any fund specified under
financial year | Unspent CSR Account as per | Schedule VIl as per second proviso to section
(in Rs.) | section 135(6) 135(5) ]
Amount  (in | Date of | Name of the | Amount Date of
Rs.) | transfer  Fund transfer
* 1,39,02,601 | 1,80,46,418* | April 29, 2022 | N.A. N.A, N.A. -

*Excluding additional amount of Rs. 10,000 transferred to the account to cover bank charges, if any
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(Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e)

(d) "Amount spent on administrative Nil

overheads o -
(¢) Amount spent on Impact | | Not applicable

Assessment, if applicable
(f) Total amount spent for the Rs. 1,39,02,601/-

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any :

Not applicable

Sl. No. Particulars Amount (in Rs.)
{1) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) 3,19,49,020
{ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 1,39,02,601
(iti) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] Not Applicable
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial Not Applicable
years, if any
i (v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] Not Applicable

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:
SI. Preceding |Amount transferred | Amount spent | Amount transferred to any fund | Amount remaining
No. |Financial to Unspent CSR |in the | specified under Schedule Vil as [to be spent in
Year Account under |reporting per section 135(6), if any succeeding financial
section 135 (6) (in |Financial Year Name of |Amount |Date of |years (in Rs.)
Rs.) (inRs.) the Fund |(inRs.) |transfer |
1, FY 2020-21 2,99,00,493 1,49,50,246 | N.A. N.A. N.A. 1,49,50,247

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding

financial year(s):

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) 7 (8) (9
Sl. '|Project |Name of the Financial Project Total amount | Amount spent | Cumulative Status of the
No. |ID Project Year in | duration |allocated on the project | amount spent at | project -

which  the for the Project |in the the end of |Completed
project was {in Rs.) reporting reporting / Ongoing
commenced Financial year | Financial Year {in
Rs.)
1 N.A COVID-19 care | 2020-21 36 months 1,52,50,247 1,49,50,246 1,52,50,247 | Completed
relief )
2 N.A Restoration 2020-21 36 months 1,30,29,050 Nit 40,58,902 | Ongoing
beautification
and
maintenance
of Durgam
Cheruvu lake
3 N.A Setting up of 2020-21 36 months 61,80,099 Nil 2,00,000 | Ongoing
educational
institution
TOTAL 3,44,59,396 1,49,50,246
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10.

In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset,
furnish the details relating to the asset so created or
acquired through CSR spent in the financial year
(asset-wise details)

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital
asset(s)

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of

capital asset

CovID-19
care -
Society for
Cyberabad
Security
Council

0

K RAHEJA
CORP

Gambhiraopet
School Campus

COVID-19 care |
relief initiatives

May 31, 2021

'Rs. 15,00,000 |

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or
beneficiary under whose name such capital asset
is registered, their address etc.

February 18,
2022, March 22,
2022

During FY_20_21_—
22

Rs. 4,97,441

Rs. 1,49,50,246

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or
acquired (including complete address
location of the capital asset)

District Telangana Statq,
Hospitals - | Education ' &
Adilabad, Welfare
Kothagudem Infrastructure
and Development
Bhoopalpally, | Corporation, 2
Telangana Floor,
Collectorate
Complex,
Karimnagar -
505001,
Telangana
District School building
Hospitals — | constructed,
and Adilabad, Gambhiraopet
Kothagudem Sircilla  School,
and ZPHS boys High
Bhoopalpally School,

Gambbhiraopet
Village, District
Rajanna Sircilla,
Telangana -
505304

Telangana
Vaidya Vidhana
Parishad,
Department of
Health Medical
& Family
Welfare, King
Koti,
Hyderguda,
Hyderabad -
500001,
Telangana

Hospital
building
constructed,
District
Hospital,
Kondapur,
Telanagana
500084
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11. | Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to | : | Not applicable
spend two per cent of the average net profit as per
section 135(5)

For and on behalf of the CSR Committee of
Sundew Properties Limited

-~ (//
s T M e B\
Place: Mumbai Preeti Chheda Vinod Rohira
Date: May 11, 2022 Director Director
DIN: 08066703 DIN: 00460667
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Annexure -1l

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo Etc:

Information on Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo
under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are provided

hereunder:

(A) Conservation of Energy:

i. The steps taken or
conservation of energy

impact on | Asa part of the conservation of energy measures by

the Company, it has implemented Leadership in
Energy & Environmental Design (LEED) green building
standards for its buildings which includes energy
efficient glazing, energy efficient water-cooled
chillers, use of energy efficient LED lighting, low flow
water fixtures, implementation of Solar Photovoltaic
for power generation etc. for which the buildings
have been awarded LEED Gold Certification. In
addition, the entire Mindspace Madhapur campus in
Hyderabad has been certified as Gold rated under ClI-
IGBC {Indian Green building Council) Existing Green
campus rating program.

ii. The steps taken bme Company for
utilizingalternate sources of energy

Installed roof top Solar PV capacity of 1016.4 Kw

iii. The capital investment on energy
conservation equipment

(B) Technology Absorption:

i. The efforts qr_nadg towards technology
absorption

The Company tries to absorb new technology in its
operations from time to time.

ii. The benefits derived like product
improvement, cost reduction, product
development or import substitution

iii.in case of imported technology
(imported during the last three years
reckoned from the beginning of the
financial year)

(a) the details of tecf_mo_logy imported;

_(b) the year of import;

(c) whether the technology been fully
absorbed;
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Telangana-500081.Phone: +91-40-6628 0000, Fax No. +91-40-6628 0065
Website: https://sundewproperties.com



Sundew Properties Limited |

K RAHEJA
CORP

(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where
absorption has not taken place, and
the reasons thereof.

iv. the expenditure incurred on research
and development

(C) Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo:

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
(in Rs.) (inRs.)
Total Foreign Exchange Used:

Others Nil [ 1,08,59,661

Purchase of equipment and build_ing materials B Nil 40,79,275

Total Foreign Exchange Earned Nil Nil
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Sundew Properties Limited

~ -

o -
foa G s . yok

Place: Mumbai Preeti Chheda Vinod Rohira
Date: May 11, 2022 Director Director
DIN: 08066703 DIN: 00460667
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Annexure - 1l
(Rs. In Mns)
Form No. AOC-2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm'’s
length transactions under third proviso thereto.
| Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not atarm'’s I;gfh basis N.A.
a Name(s}) of the related party and nature of relationship
b Nature of contracts / arrangements / transactions
C Duration of the contracts / arrangements / transactions
d Salient terms of the contracts / arrangements / transactions including the value, if any
e Justification for entering into such contracts / arrangements / transactions
f Date(s) of approval by the Board
| 8 | Amount paid as advances, if any: _
| h Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under
first proviso to Section 188
1l Details of material contracts / arrangement / transactions at arm's length basis
Sr. | Name of the | Nature of | Duration  of | Salient terms of the | Date(s) of | Amount
no. | Related Party | contracts/ the contracts | contracts / | approval | paid as
and nature of | arrangements |/ arrangements / | by advance,
relationship / transactions | Arrangements | transactions including | the if any
/ transactions | the value, if any Board, if (Rs. In
(Rs. In Mns) any lakhs)
1. | K Raheja Corp | Agreement Ongoing Project Management | N.A. Nil
Investment Services / Business
Managers LLP support services
expense
Nature: LLP in
which Directors Value: Rs. 122 millions
are Partners
2. | KRC Agreement Ongoing Property maintenance | N.A. Nil
Infrastructure expense
and Projects
Private Limited Value: Rs. 101 millions |
Nature: Private [
Company in l
which Directors |

CIN: U70102TG2006PLCO050883
Regd. Office: Mindspace Cyberabad, S. No. 64(Part), Next to VSNL Building, Hitech City, Madhapur, Hyderabad,
Telangana-500081.Phone: +91-40-6628 0000, Fax No. +91-40-6628 0065
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are Directors

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Sundew Properties Limited

X

=

—a

Place: Mumbai Preeti Chheda Vinod Rohira

Date: May 11, 2022 Director ; Director
DIN: 08066703 DIN: 00460667

CIN: U70102TG2006PLC050883
Regd. Office: Mindspace Cyberabad, S. No. 64(Part), Next to VSNL Building, Hitech City, Madhapur, Hyderabad,
Telangana-500081.Phone: +91-40-6628 0000, Fax No. +91-40-6628 0065
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Annexure IV
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31sTMARCH 2022

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Sundew Properties Limited
Telangana

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Sundew Properties Limited
(CIN: U70102TG2006PLC050883) and having its registered office at Mindspace Cyberabad,
S.No. 64 (Part), Next to VSNL Bldg., Hitech City, Madhapur, Hyderabad - 500081, Telangana
(hereinafter called ‘the Company’). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/ statutory
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by
the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit
period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022 complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March 2022
according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made
thereunder (not applicable to the Company during the audit period);

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment
and External Commercial Borrowings;

= (v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
gor & AN Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

_f: . 3 ' (a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares
\ > Lan /akeovers) Regulations, 2011;
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(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (not applicable to the Company during the
audit period);

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulations, 2014 (applicable up to August 12, 2021); and The Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity)
Regulations, 2021 (applicable w.e.f. August 13, 2021) (not applicable to the
Company during the audit period);

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008 (applicable up to August 8, 2021); and The
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021 (applicable w.e.f. August 9, 2021);

(f)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing
with client;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2021 (not applicable to the Company during the audit period);

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
2018 (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period); and

(i)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (applicable in respect of Non-Convertible
debentures of the company listed at stock exchanges);

(vi) Special Economic Zones Act, 2005 and Electricity Act, 2003 and the rules and
regulations made under these Acts being the laws that are specifically applicable to
the Company based on its business activities and related to the sector/industry in
which it operates.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards
issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India;

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Standards, Guidelines etc. mentioned above and in respect of laws
specifically applicable to the company based on its business activities and to the
sector/industry except that the company has not spent in full the mandated percentage of
2% of average profits on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities; however such
unspent amount has been transferred to a separate “Unspent Corporate Social
Responsibility Account” within the stipulated time as the earmarked spending is related to
ongoing projects.

We further report that
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted. The company being a Joint

Venture is not required to appoint Independent Directors. There were no changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under reporting.
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Few Board Meetings of the company during the year under review were held at shorter
notice with the consent of the directors and a system exists for seeking and obtaining
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and
recorded as part of the minutes. However, in the minutes of the meetings of Board and its
Committees, for the period under review, no dissents were noted and hence we have no
reason to believe that decisions by the Board were not approved by all the directors
present.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and standards.

We further report that during the period under review the Company:

1. has obtained the approval of the members for alteration of its Articles of Association
under Section 14 of the Companies Act, 2013, by way of a special resolution passed at
the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on March 8, 2022;

2. has issued and allotted 4,000 listed, rated, secured, non-cumulative, taxable,
transferrable, redeemable non-convertible debentures aggregating to Rs 400 Crores by
way of private placement;

3. inits Board Meeting held on:

a) June 22, 2021, declared an interim dividend @ Rs.27.69/- (INR Twenty Seven Point
Sixty Nine) per equity share (face value Rs.10/-) for the financial year 2021-22
aggregating to Rs. 780,000,000 (INR Seven Hundred Eighty Million Only);

b) September 28, 2021, declared an interim dividend @ Rs.24.85/- (INR Twenty Four
Point Eight Five) per equity share (face value Rs.10/-) for the financial year 2021-
22, aggregating to Rs. 700,000,000 (INR Seven Hundred Million Only);

c) December 23, 2021, declared an interim dividend @ Rs.19.52/- (INR Nineteen Point
Five Two Only) per equity share (face value Rs.10/-) for the financial year 2021-22,
aggregating to Rs. 550,000,000 (INR Five Hundred Fifty Million Only); and

d) March 25, 2022, declared an interim dividend @ 17.75/- (INR Seventeen Point
Seven Five Only) per equity share (face value Rs. 10/-) for the financial year 2021-
22, aggregating to Rs. 500,000,000 (INR Five Hundred Million Only).

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure-A and
forms an integral part of this report.

For Manish Ghia & Associates
Company Secretaries
(Unique ID: P2006MH007100)

\ t
. ~

e e e /) - o \_/\A B
i
‘ o Pankaj Kumar Nigam
Place: Ghaziabad NPy gect® o/ Partner
Date: May 11, 2022 = M. No. FCS 7343, C.P. No. 7979
UDIN: F007343D000300625 PR 822/2020
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To,

Manish Ghia & Associates

‘Annexure A’

The Members,
Sundew Properties Limited

Telangana

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records.
The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provided a

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Book

Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,

regulation, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited

The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has

1.
on our audit.
2.
reasonable basis for our opinion.
3.
of Accounts of the Company.
4.
5.
to the verification of procedures on the test basis.
6.
conducted the affairs of the Company.
7.

On account of the restrictions imposed by the Government Authorities on opening of
offices, travel and movement due to Covid19 pandemic during the year under review,
we for the purpose of completion of our audit have relied on documents and papers
provided in electronic form through email/other virtual means for verification of
compliances.

For Manish Ghia & Associates
Company Secretaries

(Unique ID: P2006MH007100)
X

‘ K ¥ Pankaj Kumar Nigam
Place: Ghaziabad 4 Partner
Date: May 11, 2022 M. No. FCS 7343, C.P. No. 7979
UDIN: F007343D000300625 PR 822/2020
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o Chartd"re'g Accountants
Delo‘tte Lotus Corporate Park
- 1st Floor,Wing A-G
Haskins & SellsLLP CTS No. 1B4A fy Coxc
Off Westerr;Express Highway
Goregaon (East)

Mumbai-400 063
Maharashtra, India

Tel: +91 22 6245 1000
Fax: +91 22 6245 1001

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Members of Sundew Properties Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Sundew Properties Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022, and the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and
the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
31 March 2022, and its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in
our report.

Regd. Office: One International Center, Tower 3, 32nd Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road (West), Mumbai-400 013, Maharashtra, India.
(LLP Identification No. AAB-8737)
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Key Audit Matter

Auditor’s Response

Disclosure of fair value of Investment
Property (including Investment
Property under construction)

In the financial statements, the Company
has recognised Investment Property
(including Investment Property under
construction) at cost less impairment, if
any. As at 31 March 2022, the carrying
cost of Investment Property (including
Investment Property under construction)
is Rs. 12,296 millions (31 March 2021 -
Rs 12,516 millions).

The Company’s Investment Property
(including Investment Property under
construction) comprises Land, Buildings
and other assets forming part of Building,
the Building is used for commercial
leasing and Company earns rental income
from tenants.

Determination of fair value disclosed for
Investment Property (including
Investment Property under construction)
involves significant judgement with
respect to valuation method used and
assumptions/estimates such as future
market rent levels, occupancy levels,
expected capital expenditures,
capitalisation rate, weighted average cost
of capital, considerations due to current
economic and market conditions including
effects of COVID-19 pandemic.

The disclosure of fair value of Investment
Property (including Investment Property
under construction) is considered to be a
key audit matter due to the significance
of the item in the financial statements as
a whole.

Refer Note 5 and 6 to the Ind AS financial
statements.

Principal audit procedures:

Our audit approach consisted testing of the

design/
effectiveness of the

and operating
controls and

implementation
internal

substantive testing as follows:

Obtained an understanding of the process
followed by the management to determine
the fair value of the Investment Property
(including Investment Property under
construction).

Evaluated the design and implementation
and tested the operating effectiveness of
the internal controls established by the
Company relating to determination of fair
value disclosed for investment property
(including investment property under
construction).

We, along with our valuation specialist,
tested the appropriateness of valuation
method used and assumptions/estimates
such as future market rent levels,
occupancy levels, expected capital
expenditures, capitalisation rate, weighted
average cost of capital and disclosure
requirements of accounting standard.

Assessed independence and competency
of the external valuer appointed by the
Company.

Performed retrospective testing of key
assumptions considered by the Company.

Verified the reasonableness of the
assumptions for impact on the cash flows
on account of the COVID-19 pandemic.

Verified the mathematical accuracy of the
valuation model.

Assessed and tested that the disclosures
made by the Company is as per the
requirements of the Accounting Standard.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Director's report, but does not include
the financial statements and our auditor’'s report thereon.

e Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon

» In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of
our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

o If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Management’'s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income,
cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable
user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of
our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
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extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March
2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on 31 March 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the
Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in "Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance
with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act.

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

a. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its financial statements.

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

c. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.
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d.

(i) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalif of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(ii) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as
provided under (i) and (ii) above contain any material misstatement.

The interim dividend declared and paid by the Company during the year and until the
date of this report is in accordance with Section 123 of the Act. The Company has not
proposed final dividend for the year.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure
B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

v

Anjum A. Qazi
(Partner)
(Membership No. 104968)
(UDIN: 22104968AIUPXN1897)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 11 May 2022
ROIN: AAQ-2022-37994



Deloitte
Haskins & Sells LLP

ANNEXURE “"A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i)
of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Sundew Properties
Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards
on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable.assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2022, based on the criteria for internal financial control over
financial reporting established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

v

-

Anjum A. Qazi
(Partner)
(Membership No. 104968)
(UDIN: 22104968AIUPXN1897)
Place: Mumbai
Date: 11 May 2022
ROIN: AAQ-2022-37994
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and
the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the
best of our knowledge and belief, we state that

(i)
(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and investment
properties.

(b) The Company has a program of verification of property plant and equipment and
investment property so to cover all the items in a phased manner over a period of 3
years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company
and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain property plant and
equipment and investment property were due for verification during the year and
physically verified by the Management during the year. According to the information
and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(c) Inrespect of immovabie properties of land and buildings constructed thereon disclosed
as Investment Property in the financial statements, Original Demerger Sale deed which
constitutes original title deeds as per the legal head of the Company have been pledged
as security for loans and guarantees, are held in the name of the Company based on
confirmation directly received by us from Custodian.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment during the
year. The Company does not have any intangible assets.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company
as at 31 March 2022 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

(ii)

(a) The inventories were physically verified during the year by the Management at
reasonable intervals. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the Management is
appropriate having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its operations.
No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventories were
noticed on such physical verification of inventories when compared with books of
account.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, at points of
time during the year, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. In our
opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the quarterly
returns or statements comprising (Stipulated financial information) filed by the
Company with such bank are in agreement with the unaudited books of account of the
Company of the respective quarters.
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(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

The Company has made investments in units of mutual funds (other parties). The
Company has not provided guarantee or security or granted loans or advances in the
nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties during the year, in respect of which:

(a) The Company has not provided any loans or advances in the nature of loans or
stood guarantee or provided security to any other entity during the year, and hence
reporting under clause (iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The investments made during the year are, in our opinion, prima facie, not
prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

(c) In respect of loans granted or advances in the nature of loans provided by the
Company, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been
stipulated and the repayments of principal amounts and receipts of interest are
regular as per stipulation.

(d) According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed, in respect of loans granted and advances in the nature of
loans provided by the Company, there is no overdue amount remaining outstanding
as at the balance sheet date.

(e) None of the loans or advances in the nature of loans granted by the Company have
fallen due during the year.

(f) According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or
period of repayment during the year. Hence, reporting under clause (iii)(f) is not
applicable.

The Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provided guarantees
or securities during the year and hence reporting under clause (iv) of the Order is not
applicable

The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be
deposits. Hence, reporting under clause (v) of the Order is not applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under
Section 148(1) of the Act for construction activity. We have broadly reviewed the books
of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and
Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended, prescribed by the Central Government for
maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act and are of the opinion
that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained by the
Company. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records
with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(vii) In respect of statutory dues:
(a) Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund,

Income-tax, duty of Custom, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to the
Company have generally been regularly deposited by it with the appropriate
authorities though there has been slight delay in few cases.

We have been informed that the provisions of the Employees’ State Insurance Act,
1948 Sales Tax, Service Tax, Value Added Tax are not applicable to the Company.
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There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services tax,
Provident Fund, Income-tax, duty of Custom, cess and other material statutory dues
in arrears as at 315t March, 2022 for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable.

(b) Details of dues of Service Tax which have not been deposited as on 315t March,
2022 on account of disputes are given below:

Name of Forum where Period to which/Amount _
Statute Nature of Dues Dispute is Pending the Amount (R-s._ in
Relates ~_|millions)

The Finance|Wrong availment of|Customs, Excise &2011-12 o*
Act 1994  |credit of service tax|Service Tax

paid on input|/Appellate Tribunal

services. -
The Finance|Service tax on|Customs, Excise &|2010-11 & 2011-|1
Act 1994 renting of fit-outs|Service Tax|12

and equipment. Appellate Tribunal

* "0" represents value less than Rs. 0.5 million.

(viii) There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were
surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961 (43 of 1961) during the year.

(ix)
(a) In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

(c) To the best of our knowledge and belief, in our opinion, term loans availed by the
Company were, applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which
the loans were obtained.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised
on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term
purposes by the Company.

(e) The Company did not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture during the
year and hence, reporting under clause (ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries or joint ventures or associate companies and hence, reporting under
clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

(x)
(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause
(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.
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(b) During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and
hence reporting under clause (x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi)
(a) To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the
Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-Section (12) of Section 143 of the
Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and
upto the date of this report.

(c) As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the
Order is not applicable.

(xiii) In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act,
where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related
party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by
the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)
(2) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate
with the size and the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the
Company during the year and till date.

(xv) In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and hence
provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)
(a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause (xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the
Order is not applicable.

(b) The Group does not have any Core Investment Company (CIC) as part of the group
and accordingly reporting under clause (xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

{xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our
audit and the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the
year.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the
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financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management
plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they
fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state
that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company
as and when they fall due.

(xx)
(a) The Company has not planned to spend for other than ongoing projects, hence
reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) is not applicable.

(b) In respect of ongoing projects, the Company has transferred unspent Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) amount, to a Special account before the date of this report and
within a period of 30 days from the end of the financial year in compliance with the
provision of Section 135(6) of the Act.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)
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Anjum A Qazi

(Partner)

(Membership No. 104968)
(UDIN: 22104968AIUPXN1897)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 11 May 2022
ROIN: AAQ-2022-37994



Sundew Properties Limited
(CIN: U70102TG2006PLC050883)
Balance sheet as at 31 March 2022

(A armoumts are i Rs Millions unless oiliervise slated )
Particulars Notes Asal Asal
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

ASSETS
Non-current assels
Property, plant and equipment 4 530 388
Capital work-in-progress - 22
Investment property 5 12,242 11,742
Investment property under construction 6 52 774
Financial assets
(i) Loans & 735 985
(ii) Other financial assets 7 964 713
Income lax assets (net) 9 146 253
Other assets 10 16 22
Total non-current assels 14,685 14,899
Current assets
Inventories 11 8 5
Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 12 49 51
(ii} Cash and cash equivalents 13 15 125
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 4 35 44
(iv) Other financial assels iy 304 118
Other current assels 10 53 21
Total current assets . 464 364
Tolal Assets 15,149 15263
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 15 282 282
Other equity 16 2,669 3.145
Total equity 2,951 3,427
Liabilities
Non-current linbilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Bonowings = 8,400 8673
(ii) Lease liabilities - 40
(1i1) Other financial liabilities 18 847 488
Provisions 19 1 1
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 32 495 137
Other non-current liabilities 20 144 134
Total non-corrent liabilities 9,892 9473
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 17 652 362
(ii) Lease liabilities - 4
(iii) Trade payables

(a) total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises; and P/} 10 7

(b) total outstanding dues of cieditors other than micro and small enterprises 21 71 70
(iii) Other financial liabilities 18 1,464 1.820
Provisions 19 0 0
Other current liabilities 20 103 100
Total current liabilities 2,306 2,363
Total liabilities 12,198 11,836
Total equity and liabilities 15,149 15.263
Significant accounting policies 3
Notes to the financial Statements 11045
See the accompanying notes form an integral part of these Ind AS financial Statements
In lenms of our report of even date attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Sundew Properties Limited

CIN: U70102TG2006PLC050883

NS\l I e

A, O Vinod N. Rohira Preeti N. Chhedn
Partner Director Director
P DIN : 00460667 DIN : 08066703
lace - Mumbai Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date: 11 May 2022 Date: 11 May 2022 Date: 11 May 2022
-

T AT

Venna N. Reddy Swethn Jujjnvirapu Poojn Karia
Chicf Executive Officer  Chief financial officer Company Secretary
Place : Hyderabad Place : Hyderabad Place : Mumbai

Date: 11 May 2022 Date: 11 May 2022 Date: 11 May 2022




Sundew Properties Limited
(CIN: U70102TG2006PLC050883)
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts are in Rs. Millions unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
1 Revenue from operations 22 4,489 3,452
11  Other income 23 161 384
III Total income (I+11) 4,650 3,836
1V Expenses
Employee benefits expense 24 7 6
Finance costs 25 686 931
Depreciation expense 26 391 325
Other expenses 27 643 568
Total expenses (1V) 1,727 ~ 1.830
V  Profit before tax (III-1V) 2,923 2,006
V1 Less: Tax expenses 32
- Current tax 511 359
- Deferred tax 358 3
Total tax expense (VI) 869 362
VII Profit for the year (V-VI) 2,054 1.644
VHI Other comprehensive income
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit & Loss
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans 0 (0)
0 (0)
(ii) Items that will be reclassified to Profit & Loss - -
IX Total comprehensive income for the year (VII+VIII) 2,054 1,644
Basic and diluted earnings per share (Rs) 29 72.91 58.36
(Face value of Rs 10 each)
Significant accounting policies 3

Notes to the financial Statements 1to45
See the accompanying notes form an integral part of these Ind AS financial Statements

In terms of our report of even date attached.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

Nl
\ \/

Vinod N. Rohira
Director

DIN : 00460667

Place : Mumbai
Date: 11 May 2022

b e

Venna N, Reddy

L d LU elpbrrst—

Preeti N. Chheda
Director

DIN : 08066703
Place : Mumbai
Date: 11 May 2022

Anjum A, Qazi
Partner

Place : Mumbai
Date: 11 May 2022

\'%llln Jujjavarapu Pooja Karia

Chief Executive Officer

Place : Hyderabad
Date: 11 May 2022

Chief financial officer

Place : Hyderabad
Date: 11 May 2022

Company Secretary

Place ; Mumbai
Date: 11 May 2022



Sundew Properties Limited
(CIN: U70102TG2006PLCOSOKS3)

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounis ore in Rs Millions unless otherwise slaled)

(A)  Equity share capitnl =

Balance as at 1 April 2020 Changes in Restinted batanee axat | Changes in equity share Balance as at

equity share 1 April 2020 capltal during the year 31 March 2021

capital due to

prior period

ervors
282 - 282 - 282

Balance as at 1 April 2021 Changes in Restnted balance as nt | Changes in equity share Balance as at

equity share 1 April 2021 capltal during the year 31 March 2022

capital due to

prior period

errors
282 - 282 - w2
{B) Otherequity
Particul Reserves and surplus Ttem of other Total other equity
Securl Retalned eamings| Deb ¥ P comprehenslve
premium reserve income
Balance af 1 April 2020 385 2,528 - [()] 2,913
Profit for the vear - 1.644 - 1,644
Other comprehensive income for the year - (O] (0)
Dividend paid during the vear - (1.412) - (1.412)
Balance at 1 April 2021 385 2,760 0) 3,145
Profil for the year - 2,054 - 2,054
Olher comprehensive income for the year 0 .
Dividend paid during Lhe vear (refer note 40) (2.530) (2,530)
Transfer (o Diehenture rademption reserve - 1109 109 - =i
Balance at 31 March 2022 38s 2,178 109 0y 2,669
See the accompanying noles form an integral part of these Ind AS financial Siatemenis
In terms of our report of even date attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP Far and on beball of the Boaed of Divectors
Chartered Accountanls Sundew Properties Limited
o CIN: UT0102TG200GPLCOS0883
ol 3 K‘\/J
& ’ WL__
-

Anjum A, @nd Vinod N. Rohira Preeti N. Chheda
Pariner Director Direclor
v ™ DIN : (0460667 DIN : 08066703
Flace - Mumbai Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai

Date: 11 May 2022

Date: 11 May 2022

-
Wenna N, Reddy
Chief Exvecative Officer

Place : Hvderabad
Date: 11 May 2022

Date: 11 Moy 2022

—

g
Swetha Ju|javarapu
Chief financial officer

Pooja Karla
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Dale: 11 May 2022

Place : Hvderabad
Date: 11 May 2022



Sundew Properties Limited

(CIN: U70102TG2006PLC050883)

Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All emounts are in Rs Millions unless otherwise siated)

Particulars

A

=

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax

Adustments for

Depreciation expense

Finance costs

Interest income

Gain on redemption of mutual fund units
Liabilities no longer required written back
Sundry balance written back

Advances written off

Provision for Doubtful Debts (net)
Operating profit before working capital changes

Maovement in working capitat

(Increase) in inventories

Decrease / (Increase) in trade receivables

{Increase) in other financial assels and other assets

Increase / (D ) T in trade payabl

Increase in Other financial liabilities, other liabilities and provisions
Cash generated from operations

Direct taxes paid (net of refund received)
Net cash Mlows genernted from operating activities (A}

Cash flow from investing activities

Pay made for expenditure on I property under construction / Investment property *
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Loens given 10 body corporates

Investment in mutual fund

Proceeds from redemption of investment in mutual fund

Proceeds on repayment of loans given

Interest received

Balance with banks - in escrow account (refer note 14)

Investments in fixed deposit (net)

Net cash flows (used in) / generated from investing activities ( B)

Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of non-current borrowings
Proceeds from non-current borrowings

Non Covertible Debentures issue expenses
Recovery expense fund deposit

Finance costs paid

Payment of lease liability

Dividend paid

Net cash (used in) financing activities (C)

Net (Decrease) / Increase In cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 13

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (D + E) 13

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

2,923 2,006

391 325

686 931
(71) 311)
m [8)}
(11) (24)

2) -

- 1]

1 2

3,916 2,928
€] ©

4 (13)
(463) (553)
5 “n

a8 143

3,507 2458
(403} {170}
3 s
(508) (787)
28) 5)

- 2,731)
(1,175) (1,017)

1,176 1,018

250 8,457

! 837

(15) -

14 {24)
(215) 5744
{5,747) (9.894)
5,578 4,620
(28) .
U] -

(496) (880)
m @
(2,530 (1412)
(3,224) (7,570)
(335) 466
kZ] {432)
(301) 34




Sundew Properties Limited

(CIN: U70102TG2006PLC050883)

Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in Rs. Millions unless otherwise stated)

Reconcillation of Cash and cash equivalents with the Balance Sheel

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 3] March 2021

Notes

1, Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand 1 |
Balance with banks
= in current accounts 14 14
Other Bank balances (Refer note - 13) - 110
Less : Bank Overdraft (Refer note - 17) (316) (91)
[ELIR] 34
2 The above Statement of Cash Flow hug heen prepared under the Indirect Metliod' us set out i the Tnid AS 7 - Statament of Cash Flows

*During the yeer ended 31 March 2022, a total amount of Rs 352 (31 March 2021 : Rs 469) has been transferred from investment property under construction to Finance Lease
receivable p 1o lease of fit outs.

See the accompanying notes form an integral part of these Ind AS financial Statements
In terms of our report of even date aftached.

For Detoitte Washing & Selbs L1 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountenis Somdew Propertics Limired
: r CIN: U70102TG2006PLC050883
/ ;
3 W ~ «—
W U I Py
- M—J
Anjum A. Qazl Vinod N. Rohira Preetl N. Chheda
Partner Director Direcror
& DIN : 00460667 DIN : 08066703
Mace Mumbai Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date: 11 May 2022 Date: 11 May 2022 Date: 11 May 2022
»Fﬁ\fb ~ Y

Venna N, Reddy Swetha Jujjavarapu Pooja Karia
Chief Executive Officer Chief financial officer Compery Secretary
Place : Hyderabad Place : Hyderabad Place : Mumbei

Date: 11 May 2022 Date: 11 May 2022 Date: 11 May 2022



Sundew Properties Limited
(CIN: U70102TG2006PLC0O50883)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

2

3
a)
b)
¢)

Company background

Sundew Properties Limited (‘Sundew’ or ‘the Company’) was incorporated as a Private Limited company on 11 August
2006, The Company changed its status from Private Limited Company to Public Limited Company with effect from 23
November 2012

The Company is engaged in Development and management of Real estate projects of integrated townships with high quality
commercial segments such as Special Economic Zone (SEZ), Information Technology Parks and other commercial segments
During 2013-14 and 2018-19, part of the area of the project has been de-notified into a Non-SEZ development

In the year 2013, the Company had applied to erstwhile The Andhra Pradesh Electricity Regulatory Commission (APERC)
("Department™) for Deemed distribution licensee status to operate and maintain a power distribution system for supplying
electricity to its consumers in the Company’s SEZ project at Mindspace Cyberabad, Madhapur, Hyderabad

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Department passed an order identifying the Company as a deemed licensee to
distribute the electricity in the earmarked area with effect from 1 April 2016 subject to the fulfillment of certain prudent
conditions. The Company has filed an application seeking modification of such conditions The outcome of such application

is awaited

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules. 2015 notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and
other relevant provisions of the Act

On March 24. 2021, the Mimstry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) through a notification, amended Schedule 11l of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the amendments are applicable (or financial periods commencing from 1 April 2021 for
Company. The preparation of Financial Statements is after taking into consideration the effect of the amended Schedule 111
The Company has also reclassified the previous year figures in accordance with the requirements applicable in the current
year

These financial statements were adopted and authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 11 May 2022

Details of the Company’s Significant accounting policies are included in Note 3

Significant accounting policies

Functional and Presentation Currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees. which is also the Company’s functional currency and the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates. All financial information presented in
Indian Rupees has been rounded off to the nearest million except otherwise stated

Basis of measurement

These financial statements are on the historical cost basis, except for the following:

- Certain financial assets and liabilities (refer accounting policy regarding financial instrument) measured at fair values;

- Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability less present value of defined obligations: Fair value of plan assets less present value of
defined benefit plan

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in India (Ind AS)
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results could differ from those estimates

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the year in which the estimates are revised and in any future years affected

Information about critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the Financial Statements is included in the following notes:

* Estimation of lease term for revenue recognition

* Estimation of useful life of property, plant and equipment and investment 'property

* Estimation of recognition of deferred tax assets, availability of future taxable profit against which tax losses carried
forward can be used and income taxes,

* Impairment and Fair valuation of Investment Property, Investment property under development, Property, plant and
equipment and Capital work-in-progress

* Interest capitalised to investment property under construction
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Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/ non-current classification:

An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting date; o1

- Cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting date

All other assets are classified as non-current

A liability is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting year.
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle

Measurement of fair values

The Company's accounting policies and disclosuies require the measurement of fair values. for both financial and non-
financial assets and liabilities The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair
values

They regularly review significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments If third party information is used to
measure fair values then the finance team assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that
such valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the ! vel in the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations
should be classified

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible Fair
values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as
follows:

* Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that entity can access on measurement
date

* Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i e
as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

* Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then
the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input
that is significant to the entire measurement

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Depreciation is
charged when the assets are ready for their intended use. Purchase price or construction cost is defined as any consideration
paid or fair value of any other consideration given to acquire the asset.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure
will flow to the Company. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably, All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred
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Depreciation

Depreciation is provided using straight line method as per the useful life of the assets estimated by the management The
estimated useful lives of the assets, which are different than those presciibed under Schedule 11 of the Act, are listed in the
table below. Depreciation on addition of property, plant and equipment made during the period is provided on pro-rata basis
from / to the date of such addition

The assets and estimated useful life are as under:

Estimated Useful Life
Asset group .
(in vears)
Power assets Other assets

Right of use - Leasehold Solar Equipments** - -
Building * 75 -
Plant and machinery 15 15
Office equipment* - 4
Computers - 3
Furniture and fixture* - [/

* For these classes of assets, based on technical assessment the management believes the useful life of the assets is
appropriate which is different than those prescribed under Part C of Schedule 11 of the Act

** During the period "Right to use - Leaschold Solar Equipment” has been discontinued duc to the purchase of asset by the
Company

(1) Based on inlernal assessment the management believes the residual value of all assets is estimated 10 be 5% of the
original cost of those respective assets

(2) Assets individually costing less than Rs 5,000 are fully written off in the year of acquisition
(3) The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of the reporting period with
the effect of any changes in the estimation accounted for on a prospective basis

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property. plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Capital work in progress

Property, plant and equipment under construction is disclosed as capital work in progress which is carried at cost less any
recognised impairment losses. Cost comprises of purchase price and any attributable cost such as duties, freight, borrowing
costs, erection and commissioning expenses incurred in bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use

Advance paid and expenditure incurred on acquisition / construction of property, plant and equipment which are not ready
for their intended use at each balance sheet date are disclosed under other non-current assets as advances on capital account
and capital work-in-progress respectively.

Investment property

Recognition and measurement

Properties including land, building and other assets, which are held either for long-term rental yield or for capital
appreciation or for both, and which are not occupied substantially by the Company are classified as investment property

Investment properties are initially recognised at cost, including related transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured in accordance with the requirement of Ind AS 16's requirements for cost model i e. Cost
less depreciation less impairment losses, if any. Depreciation is charged when the investiment property is ready for its
intended use. Cost comprises of direct expenses like land cost, site labour cost, material used for project construction, project
management consultancy, costs for moving the plant and machinery to the site and general expenses incurred specifically for
the respective project like insurance, design and technical assistance, and construction overheads are allocated on a
reasonable basis to the cost of the project

Plant and machinery, furniture and fixtures, office equipment and electrical equipments which are physically attached to the
commercial buildings are considered as part of investment property

Acquisitions and disposals are accounted for at the date of completion

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred
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Depreciation

Depreciation is provided using straight line method as per the useful life of the assets estimated by the management The
estimated useful lives of the assets, which are different than to those piescribed under Schedule II of the Act and listed in the
table below, Depreciation on addition to investment property made during the period is provided on pro-rata basis from / to
the date of such addition

The assets and estimated useful life are as under

Estimated Useful Life (in
Asset group

vears)
Buildings* 75/90
Infrastructure and development* 15
Plant and machinery 15
Furniture and fixtures* 7
Electrical installation* 15

* For these classes of assets. based on technical assessment the management believes the useful life of the assets is
appropriate which is different than those prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the Act

Based on internal assessment the management believes the residual value of all assets is estimated to be 5% of the original
cost of those respective assets

Assets individually costing less than Rs 5,000 are fully written off in the year of acquisition

The estimated useful lives. residual values and depreciation method are revicwed at the end of the reporting period with the
effect of any changes in the estimation accounted for on a prospective basis

Fair Value
Fair value of investment property is based on a valuation by an independent valuer who holds a recognised and relevant
professional qualification and has recent experience in the location and category of the investment property being valued

De-recognition

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal o1 when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use
and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the property
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the property is de-recognised

Investment properties under construction

Property that is being constructed for future use as investment property is accounted for as investment property under
construction until assets are ready for their intended use

Direct expenses like land cost, site labour cost, material used for project construction, project management consultancy, costs
for moving the plant and machinery to the site and general expenses incurred specifically for the respective project like
insurance, design and technical assistance, and construction overheads are taken as the cost of the project

Investment properties under construction represent the cost incurred in respect of areas under construction of the real estate
development projects less impairment losses, if any

Advance paid for construction of investment property which are not ready for their intended use at each balance sheet date
are disclosed under other non-current assets as capital advance,

Impairment of assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date, whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such
indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. The recoverable amount of the assets (or where
applicable that of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs) is estimated as the higher of its net selling price and its
value in use Value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of the
assets and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of
an asset or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds it recoverable amount. Impairment loss is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss or against revaluation surplus, where applicable,

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss
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Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are treated as direct
cost and are considered as part of cost of such assets Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incuis
in connection with the borrowing of funds. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. A qualifying
asset is an asset that necessarily requires a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale

Capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs to be capitalised is the weighted average interest rate
applicable to the general borrowings.

Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended during the extended period in which active development is interrupted
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is ceased when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its intended use or sale are complete. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred

Inventories

Measurement of inventory

Inventories comprise of building material, components and maintenance spares, The Company measures its inventories at the
lower of cost and net realisable value

Cost of inventories

The cost of inventories of building matetials and components and work in progress comprise all costs of purchase and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition Cost is determined on moving weighted
average basis

Net realisable value

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and
estimated costs necessary to make the sale

Revenue recognition

Facility rentals

Revenue from property leased out under an operating lease is recognised over the lease term on a straight line basis. except
where there is an uncertainty of ultimate collection

Maintenance services
Maintenance income is recognised over a period of time for services rendered to the customers

Finance Lease

For assets let out under finance lease, the Company recognises a receivable at an amount equal to the net investment in the
lease. Rentals received are accounted for as repayment of principal and finance income. Minimum lease payments receivable
on finance leases are apportioned between the finance income and the reduction of the outstanding receivable The finance
income allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
net investment in the finance lease

Contingent rents are recorded as income in the periods in which they are earned

Sale of surplus construction material and scrap

Revenue from sale of surplus construction material and scrap is recognised when control of the goods are transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods.

Interest Income
(i) Interest income is recognised on time proportion basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and the effective interest

rate applicable
(ii) Interest on delayed payments are recognised, on time proportion basis, except when there is uncertainty of ultimate

collection.




Sundew Properties Limited
(CIN: U70102TG2006PLCO50883)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

3.8

3.9

a)

b)

)

d)

Tax expense

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax charge or credit. It is recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss except to the extent that it relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income in which
case, deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable ot receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to
the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax
amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using
tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by end of reporting period

Deferred tax

Deferred tax asset/liability is recognised on temporary ditferences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the Financial Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary difterences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset deferred tax liabilities and assets,
and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but
they intend to settle deferred tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised
simultaneously

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

MAT credit entitlement is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that normal
income tax will be paid during the specified period. In the year in which MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognised as an
asset, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the Statement of Profit and Loss and shown as MAT credit entitlement
under deferred tax assets, This is reviewed at each balance sheet date and the carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement is
written down to the extent it is not reasonably certain that normal income tax will be paid during the specified period.

For operations carried out under tax holiday period (80IAB benefits of Income Tax Act, 1961), deferred tax assets or
liabilities, if any, have been established for the tax consequences of those temporary differences between the carrying values
of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases that reverse after the tax holiday ends In the situations where one or
more units of the Company are entitled to a tax holiday under the tax law, no deferred tax (asset or liability) is recognised in
respect of temporary differences which reverse during the tax holiday period, to the extent the concerned unit's gross total
income is subject to the deduction during the tax holiday period Deferred tax in respect of temporary differences which
reverse after the tax holiday period is recognised in the year in which the temporary differences originate However, the
Company restricts recognition of deferred tax assets to the extent it is probable that sufficient future taxable income will be
available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised For recognition of deferred taxes, the temporary differences
which originate first are considered to reverse first.

Earnings per share (EPS):

The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity shareholders for the period by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the reporting period.

Diluted EPS is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity shareholders for the period by the weighted
average number of equity and dilutive equity equivalent shares outstanding during the period, except where the results would
be anti-dilutive
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Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporiing period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation
Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as
finance cost

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but will probably not,
require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation of a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood
of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

A contingent asset is disclosed when there would be a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of
the Company

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimates

Foreign currency transactions and translations

Transactions denominated in foreign curiency ate recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transactions
Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange lransactions seltled during the year are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss of the period

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign curmrency. which ate outstanding as at the period-end and not covered
by forward contracts. are translated at the period-end at the closing exchange rate and the resultant exchange differences are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Non-monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost

Leas -~

As a Lessor

The Company enters into lease agreements as a lessor with respect to some of its investment properties Leases for which the
Company is a lessor is classified as finance or operating leases Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risk: and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease All other leases are classified as
operating leases

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of the Company's net investment
in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to reporting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the
Comipany's net investment outstanding in respect of the leases

As a Lessee

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of a contract. The Company recognises a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease agreements in which it is the lessee, except for short-
term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets. For these leases. the
Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless
another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease If this rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses its
incremental borrowing rate

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:

» fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives;

« variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the commencement
date;

« the amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;

» payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to terminate the lease
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The lease liability is Presented in balance sheet as Lease liability

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using
the effective interest method) and by reducing the cairying amount to reflect the lease payments made

The Company remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset)
whenevel

« the lease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease
liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate

« the lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment under a guaranteed residual
value, in which cases the lease liability is measured by discounting the revised lease payments using the initial discount rate
(unless the lease payments change is due to a change in a floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used)
» a lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the lease
liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate

Whenever the Company incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the site on which it is
located or restore the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease, a provision is
recognised and measured under Ind AS 37 — ‘Provisions. Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” The costs are
included in the related right-of-use asset, unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories

Right-of-use assels are depreciated over the shorler period ot lease term and uselul life of the underlying asset

The Company applies Ind AS 36 Impairment of Assets to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for
any identified impairment loss as described in Note 3 3

Variable rents that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement the lease liability and the right-of-
use asset The related payments are recognised as an expense in the period in which the event or condition that triggers those
payments occurs and are included in the line “other expenses™ in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Financial instruments

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and/or financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes party to a contract embodying the
related financial instruments. All financial assets, financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value Transaction costs
that are attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from as the case may be, the fair value of
such assets or liabilities, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial assets:

Classification of financial assets:

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

- those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through the Statement of
Profit and Loss), and

- those measured at amortised cost

The classification is done depending upon the Company's business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows

Subsequent M r t
Debt instruments:

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's business model for managing the asset and the cash
flow characteristics of the asset There are three measurement categories into which the Company classifies its debt

mstruments:

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business whose
objective is 1o hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding
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Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)

Financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are
held within a business whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows that give rise on specified dates
to solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding and by selling financial assets,

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through the Statement of Profit and Loss unless it is measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are immediately recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity instruments:

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value There are two measurement categories into which
the Company classifies its equity instruments:

Investments in equity instruments at FVTPL:

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company irrevocably elects on initial recognition to
present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income for equity instruments which are not held for
trading

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI:

On initial recognition, the Company can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to present the
subsequent changes in fair value 1 other comprehensive income This clection is not permitted if the equity investment is
held for trading These elected investiments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs Subsequently, they are
measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the reserve for ‘equity instruments through other comprehensive income' The cumulative gain or loss 1s
not reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss on disposal of the investments, but is transferred to retained earnings

Impairment of financial assets:
The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at
amortised cost, lease receivables, trade receivables, other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset. For trade
receivables, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Further, for the
purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the Company has used a practical
expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109 This expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix
which takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information,
Derecognition of financial assets:
A financial asset is primarily derecognised when:
(1) the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired, or
(ii) the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset; and

the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety (other than investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI), the differences
between the carrying amounts measured at the date of derecognition and the consideration received is recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss. Any interest in transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the Company is
recognised as a separate asset or liability
Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual inteiest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs
Repurchase of the Company's own equity instrument is recognised and deducted directly in equity No gain or loss is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's own equity
instruments
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Compound financial instruments

The component parts of compound financial instruments issued by the Company are classified separately as financial
liabilities and equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument. A conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or
another financial asset for a fixed number of the Company's own equity instruments is an equity instrument,

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for similar
non-convertible instruments. This amount is recorded as a liability on an amortised cost basis using the effective interest
method until extinguished upon conversion or at the instrument’s maturity date

The conversion option classified as equity is determined by deducting the amount of the liability component from the fair
value of the compound instrument as a whole. This is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax effects, and is not
subsequently remeasured

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible instruments are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity component are recognised directly
in equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component are included in the carrying amount of the liability component
and are amortised over the lives of the convertible instrument using the effective interest method.

Financial Liabilities

Recognition, measurement and classification

Financial liabilities are classified as either held at a) fair value through the Statement of Profit and Loss, or b) at amortised
cost Management determines the classification of its financial liabilities at the time of initial recognition or, where
applicable. at the time of reclassification

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings Subsequent measurement of
financial liabilities depends on their classification as fair value through the Statement of Profit and Loss or at amortised cost
All changes in fair value of financial liabilities classified as FVTPL are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Amortised cost category is applicable to loans and borrowings and trade and other payables After initial re :_nition the
financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate method

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. Gains and
losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognised

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and presented on net basis in the Balance Sheet when there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention either to settle on a net basis or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash at banks and on hand, demand deposits, other short-term, highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Statement of Cash flow

Cash flow is reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a
non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating,
investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flow, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined
above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management

As per para 8 of Ind AS 7 — “Statement of Cash Flows’, “where bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand form an
integral part of an entity’s cash management, bank overdrafts are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents
Bank overdraft, in the Balance Sheet, is included as ‘borrowings’ under Financial Liabilities”,
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3.16

3.17

3.18

3.20

Employee benefits plan

Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS — 19 ‘Employce benefits’

Short Term Employee Benefits:

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee
benefits such as salaries, wages, etc. and are recognised in the year in which the employee rendered the related services. The
undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by
employees is recognised as an expense during the period

Long term employee benefits:

(i) Defined Contribution Plans

Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as provident fund are charged as an expense based on the amount of
contribution required to be made as and when services are rendered by the employees. Company's provident fund
contribution, in respect of certain employees, is made to a government administered fund and charged as an expense. The
above benefits are classified as defined contribution schemes as the Company has no further defined obligations beyond the
monthly contributions

(ii) Defined Benefit Plans

The Company’s gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company has determined the gratuity liability based
calculated through actuarial valuation based on the number of years completed and last drawn basic salary as mentioned in
the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity
plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the repotting period less the fair value of plan assets,
il any The defined benefil obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method The
Company’s gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan In the current period, the Company has determined the gratuity
liability based on actuarial valuation report based on the last drawn basic salary the maximum liability per employee is
restricted 20 lacs per current HR policy

The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined by discounting the estimated future
cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms
approximating to the terms of the related obligation. The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the
net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(iii) Other long term employee benefits - Compensated absences

Benefits under compensated absences are accounted as other long-term employee benefits. The Company has determined the
liability for compensated absences calculated through actuarial valuation which is determined on the basis of leave credited
to employee’s account and the last drawn salary. The Company's net obligation in respect of compensated absences is the
amount of benefit to be settled in future, that employees have eamed in return for their service in the current and previous
years. The benefit is discounted to determine its present value. The obligation is measured on the basis of an actuarial
valuation using the projected unit credit method Remeasurement is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the
period in which they arise. Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the
period in which the employee renders the related services are recognised as a liability

Subsequent events
The Financial Statements are adjusted to reflect events that occur after the reporting date but before the Financial Statements

are issued

Errors and estimates

The Company revises its accounting policies if the change is required due to a change in Ind AS or if the change will provide
more relevant and reliable information to the users of the Financial Statement. Changes in accounting policies are applied
retrospectively

A change in an accounting estimate that results in changes in the carrying amounts of recognised assets or liabilities or to
profit or loss is applied prospectively in the period(s} of change

Dividend Distribution Policy
Dividends paid (including income tax thereon) are recognised in the period in which the interim dividends are approved by
the Board of Directors, or in respect of the final dividend when approved by shareholders

Segment Information

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues
and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that related to transactions with any of the Company's other
components, and for which discrete financial information is available All operating segments, operating results are
reviewed by the Board of Directors, which has been considered as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) to make
decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess their performance Borrowings of the Company are
considered as 'Unallocable’ and disclosed accordingly. Correspondingly, finance costs relating to all the borrowings have also
not been allocated to reportable segments and disclosed under 'Unallocable’
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10

Other financial assets (Unsecured, considered good)

Particulars As al 31 March 2022 As at 3] March 2021
Non - Current  Current  Non - Cuirent Curren|

Finance lease receivable 560 141 385 69

Unbilled revenue 300 36 19 13

Security Deposils 104 - 102 -

Interest 1eceivable on loan given - - - fl

Interes| recervable on other / deposit - 5 - 3

Fixed deposit with bank (Original matwity is more than 12 months) - 17 -

i 107
(refer note (i) below)
Other receivables - 5 - 31
964 304 713 118

(i)These fixed deposils are given as security under Debt Service Retention Account balance (DSRA)
servicing

Luoans

d with the H

¢ and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited to support debt

Particulars

As at 31 March 2022 As at 3] March 2021

= Non - Current  Current  Non - Current Curnient
(Unsccured amd considered good)
Loans to related parties 735 - 985
735 - 985

Note Loans and advances includes Rs 735 (31 March 2021 Rs 985) due from private companies in which any director 1s a director or member The loan carries mterest rate range for entire year
is 7.10% 10 7 50% (previous year 7 55% to 10%) The loans have been granted for meeling their business requirements Details of which are set-out below::

Name of the Company As at 31 As at31
March 2022 March 2021
Gigaplex Estale Private Limited 195 195
Horizonview Properties Private Limited 540 790
735 985

Theie are no Loans o1 Advances lo Promoters, Key Managenal Persons (KMPs), directors or 1elated parties repayable on demand or having no terms o1 period of repayment

No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company fo or in any other person or entities,
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, wheiher recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, direcily or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or

entities identified in any manner whalsoever by or on behalf of the Company

Non-vurrent tas nssels (nef)

Particulars

Asat31 Asal3l
March 2022 March 2021

Advance tax and tax deducted at source (Net of provision for 1ax
Rs 1.776 (31 March 2021 Net of provision for tax Rs 1265))

146 253

146 253

Other assets

Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Non - Current  Current  Non - Curient Current
Mobilisation advances - - 7 -
Capital advances 4 - i -
Prepaid expenses 12 2 7 0
Advances to suppliers 37 - 6
Balance with govemment authorities - 14 - q
16 53 22 21
Inventories (valued at lower of cost and net r ble value)
Particulars Asat3l Asat3l
March 2022  March 2021
Building material, components, maintenance spares & high speed diesel L §

L] §
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Trade receivables
Particulars Asat 31 Asat 31
March 2022 March 2021

Considered good - Secured - -
Considered good - Unsecured 49 51
Credit imy | 0 2
49 53
Less Losy Allowance [{U] 12)
Q 51
Trade receivables are generally based on terms as per The Company is not materially exposed to credit risk and loss allowance related (o trade and other receivables as

receivables are generally backed by interest free security deposns from customers. Of the tiade receivables balance as at 31 March 2022 of Rs 39 (3] March 2021 of Rs 6) is due from S largest
customers There are no other customers who represent more (than 5% of the lotal balance of trade receivables

Trade receivable ageing schedule

As at 31 March 2022 Qutstanding for the following period from the due date of payment
particulars Unbllled Not Due Lessthan |6 months-1 1-2 years 2-3years More than Total
6 months year 3 years

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — idered poond = 17 32 = - - 49
(ii} Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in - - - - - - - >
credit risk
(iii} Undispuled Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - - ~ = [ 1]
|(iii} Disputed Trade Receivables idered zond - = - = - = - -
(iv) Dispuled Trade Recervables - which have significant mcrease in . - - - - - - =
credit risk
(v1) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired ; - ] = s - | = -

Total F 17 2 - . . 0 49 |

As at 31 March 2021 o] ding for the following period from the due date of pavment
. Unbilled Not Due Lessthan |6 months-1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total
Particulars
6 manths yeat 2 yaats

{1} Undisputed Trade receivables ~ considered poad - 26 24 1 1] - - 51
(1) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in - - . - - - A =
credit risk
(iii} Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - . - - - 2 2
(i1} Dispuled Trade Receivables idered good - - - . = - - -
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in - - - . - . =
credit risk
{vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - . - - . - .

Total_ = 26 24 1 0 2 53

Cagh and cath equivalents
Particulars Asal 31 Asat3l

March 2022 March 2021

Cash on hand 1 1

Balance with banks in current accounts

- In current accounts 14 14

Fixed deposits with original malurity less than 3 months (refer below note (i)) - 110
15 125

Other bank batances

Particulars Asat 31 Asat 31

March 2022 March 2021

Fixed deposits with original maturity for more than 3 months and less 20 44
than 12 monlhs (refer below note (1))
Balance with banks

= i eserow avcount (refer below note (i) 15 .
35 44

(i)These fixed deposits are given as security under Debt Service Relention Account balance (DSRA} maintained with the ICICI Bank Limited lo support debt servicing
(ii) Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) bal ing to Rs. 15 which has been deposited i separate escrow account These can be withd for pay of CSR
expenditures only
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15

A)

(B)

(c

(E)

(F)

Share capital

Particulars

As at 31 Asal 31

March 2022 March 2021

Authorised capital

28,200,000 (31 March 2021: 28,200,000) equity shares of Rs 10 each 282 282
242 282
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
28,170,650 (31 March 2021: 28,170,650} equity shares of Rs 10 each, fully paid-up 282 282
282 282
=

Recenciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporling year:

Equity shares

As at 31 March 2022

As at 3] March 2021

Number Amount Numbei Amount
Shares outstanding ar the beginning of (he year 2,81,70,650 282 | 2,81,70,650 282
Shares issued during the year = - - .
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 2,81, 70,650 282 | 28170650 252

Righls, preferences and restrictions attached to equily shares:

Equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares haviny a pai value of Rs 10 per share Each holder of equity shares is ennitled to one vote per share and dividend pioporiionate 1o their
shareholding The Company declares and pays dividends m Indian rupees The dividend proposed by the Board of Diectots 1s subject to the approval of the sharcholders m the ensuing Annual

General Meeung, except in case of the Intenm dividend

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holdeis of equity shaies will be entitled to recene remaining assets of the Company, afier disiribulion of all prefeiential amounts The distribution

will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharcholders
Refer note 28(b) with respect to Righits, preferences and restriction for one share holder

Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% shares of a class of shares:

Equity shares of Rs 10 each, fully paid-up held by-

As al 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2021

Number Percentage Number Percentage
Mindspace Business Parks REIT 2,50,71,870  89.00% 2,50,71,870 89 00%
Andhra Pradesh Industrial Infrastructure Corporation Limited* - 0.00% 30.98,775 11.00%
Telangana State Industral Infrastructure Corporation Limited* 30,98,775  11,00% - 0.00%

2.81.70.645 _100.00% 2.81,70.645  100.00%

* Pursuant to transmission of shares from Andhra Pradesh Industrial Infrastructure Corporation Limited (APIIC) to Telangana Siate Industrial

Infrastructuie Coiporalion Limited (TSIIC) effective December 30, 2021

Shares issmed as bonuns shaves:

On 26 May 2016, the Company issued 270,438,240 equity shaies of Rs 10 each as Bonus shares to the equity shareholders of the Company in the ratio of 24 bonus equity shares for every 1 equity

share held in the Company
Disclosure of shareholding of prometers and percentage of change during the year.

% Change
Promoter Name As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021 during the year
ended 31
% of total s%oftotal | pooreh 2022
No of Shares shares No of Shares shares
Mindspace Business Parks REIT 2,50.71,870 89.00%| 2,50,71,870 89 00% 0.00%
Mindspace Business Parks REIT Jo h Ravi Raheia i 0.00% 1 0.00% 0.00%
Mindspace Business Paiks REIT Jointly with Neel Raheia | 0.00% | 0.00% 0.00%
Mindspace Business Parks REIT Jointly with Vinod Rohira ] 0.00% 1 0.00% 0.00%
Mindspace Business Paiks REIT Jointly with Preeti Chheda | 0.00% | 0 00% 0 00%
Mindspace Business Parks REIT Jointly with Pankai Gunta | 0.00% | 0.00% 0 00%
Total 2,50,71,875 89.00%| 2,50.71,875 89.00%
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(Al priounts ore in Bs Mallions uiless otherwise sited)
% Change
during the year
Promoter Name As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021 ended 31
% of total %oftotal | oorih 2021
No of Shares shares No of Shares shares

Mindspace Business Parks REIT 2.50.71.870 89 00% - 0.00% 89 00%

Mindspace Business Parks REIT Jointlv with Ravi Raheja I 0.00% - 0.00% 0 00%

Mindspace Business Parks REIT Joinily with Neel Raheja 1 0.00% - 000% 0.00%

Mindspace Business Parks REIT Jointly with Vinod Rohira | 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00%

Mindspace Business Parks REIT Joinily with Preeti Chheda 1 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00%

Mindspace Business Parks REIT Jointly with Pankaj Gupta 1 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00%
R B 10,40,184 3.69%

Mr. Chandru L. Raheja Jointly with Mrs_Jyoti C Raheia -3 69%
Mr. Ravi C Raheja Jointly with Mr Chandru L. Raheja Join(ly with Mrs - - 7,78,968 2.77%

Jvoti C Raheia -2 77%
Mr Neel C Raheja Jointly with Mr Chandru L Raheja Jointly with Mrs = % 7,78,968 277%

Jyoti C Raheia -2 7%
16,47,096 585%

Casa Maria Properties LLP i1 1 -585%
| 16.47.09 585%

Raghukoo! Estate Develap LILP -5 85%
- - 16,47,096 585%

Capstan Tradine LLP -5 85%
- . 14,73,480 523%

Anbee Constructions LLP -523%
- - 14,73,480 523%

Cape Trading LLP -523%
- - 16,47,096 585%

Palm Shelter Estate Develop LLP -5 85%
. 1,000 000%

K Raheja Com Pvt Ltd 0.00%
. - 4,95816 176%

Ivory Properties And Hotels Pvi_ Ltd -t 76%
- 54,08,784 19 20%

Genext Hardware & Parks Pvi_Lid -19 20%
- - 28,07.214 997%

Mr_Chandru L, Raheja jointly with Mrs_Ivoti C. Rehejn® -9 97%
Total 2,50,71,875 89.00%| 2,08,46,278 74.02%

* held by the sald reglstered owners for and on hehialf of the bensficiaries of lvory Property Trust
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16 Other equity

Particulars Total
Debenture
premium earnings | Redemption
reserve

Balance at 1 April 2020 385 2,528 - 2,913
Add : Profit for the year - 1,644 - 1,644
Other comprehensive income for the year (nel of [ncome tax) . [(©)] . (0)
(Less) : Dividend paid - 1,412 - 1.412
Balance at 31 March 2021 385 2.760 - 3.145
Add  Profil for the year - 2,054 - 2,054
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of Income tax) - 0 - [}
(Less) : Dividend paid (refer note 40} - 2,530 - 2,530
(Less) : Transfer to Debenture redemption reserve - 109 109 -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 385 2.175 109 2,669 |

Description of nalure and purpose of reserves
(i) Securities premium
This reserve repiesenls the premium received on issue of shares and can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

(i1) Retained earnings

Retained Eamings represents the surplus of the Statement of Profil and Loss and is available for distribution as Dividend 10 the shareholders and other puiposes as per the provisions of The
Companies Acl 2013

{in) Debenture redemption teserve

The Mistry of Corpotate Aftans vide notficaion dated August 16, 2019, amended the Companies (Share capial and Debenture) Rules, 2014 by which the Company isiequiied to create DRR
towards the debentures issued The Company 1s required to mamtam a DRR of 10% of the value of debentures issued and the amounis credited to the DRR was not to be utilised by the Company
except lo 1edeem debentures

17 Borrewings R — —
As at 31 March 2022 As al 31 March 2021
Current Cuwirent

Long - term porfion Short - term | Long - term porfion Shott - term

Terin Loans
- »m Banks (secured)

(. The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited (refer note 2,925 299 - 4,209 264
(a))
(b) The ICICT Bank Limited (refer note (c)} 753 37 - -
(¢ ) The Standard Chartered Bank (refer note (b)) - - - 324 7
Subtotal | A | 3.678 336 . 4533 271
Overdraft from Banks (secured)
(1) Overdraft from The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation . - 21 - 91
Larmted {refer note (a))
(b} Overdraft from The ICICI Bank Limited {refur note (¢} - - 2258 - -
Subtotal | B| - = 316 5 - 91
Debenture
Senior, Listed, Rated, Secuied, Non-Cummulative, Taxable, 3,972 - . - - -
Transferable, Redeemable Non-Convertible Debeniures of Face Value of
INR 1000,000 {refer Note 1}
Subtotal | C] 3972 - = - - =
Loan from Parent (Unsecured)
| Mindspace Business Parks REIT (refer note (d)) 750 = . 4,140 - i
Subtotal | D | 750 . N 2.140 . :
Tatal | A+R+C+D] R.400 A8 316 8.673 271 91
sotal | AR B 38

Note 1:

In September 2021, Sundew Properties Limited issued 4,000 Senior, Listed, Rated, Secured, Non-Cummulative, Taxable, Transfeiable, Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures of (“Non
Converlable Debentures /NCD Series 1) having face value of Rs 10,00,000 (Rupees ten lakhs only) each, amounting to Rs 400,00,00.000 (Rupees four hundred crores only) with a coupon rate of
6,1% p.a_payable quarterly beginning fiom the end of first full quarter from the date of all (date of all being 28 September 2021 and end of first full quarter being 3! December 2021),
with last coupon pay on the scheduled redemption date i e 28 June 2024 The tenure of the said NCD Series 1 is from deemed date of allotment ie. 28 September 2021, till scheduled
redemplion date i e 28 June 2024

Security terms
NCD Series | are secured by each of (he following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefil of the NCD Holders} (as further detailed in security documenis):

| First tankmg exclusive security interest by way of an equitable mortgage over identified immovable properties (as 1dentified below): First ranking sole and exclusive security interest by way of
hypothecation over

(i) the currenl & fulure movable assets owned by the Company and receivables pertaining to identified i ble properties Building 20 with 709,165 square feet carpet area (save and except
11,974 square feet carpet area of cafeteria and 1,520 square feet carpet area of SEZ office), Building 12B (unit no 1301 (22,069 square feet carpet area). unit no 1302 (16,296 square feet carpet
area), unit no 1401 (37,050 square feet carpet area))- Part Project Mindspace Madhapur, Hyderabad Buildings

(ii} the escrow account and the subscription account and all amounts standing to the credit of, or accrued or accruing on escrow account and the subscription account

2. Guarantee from Mindspace REIT

Redemplion teims:
a)NCD Series | are redeemable by way of bullet payment on 28 June 2024 and accordingly the same has been classified as non current borrowing as on 31 March 2022 (refer note 17)

b) Inlerest is payable on (he lasi day of each financial quarter in a year (starting from 31 December 2021) until the scheduled redempiion date

¢) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by Ihe Credit Rating Agency In case rating is upgraded after any raling downgiade, lhe Coupon shalt be
decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade

d) Upon occurrence of a datory redemplion event, the Company shall issue datory redemption nofice within 2 business days and no later than 30 (thirty) Business Days from issuance of
mandatory redemption nofice (unless instructed otherwise by debenture frustee), redeem in full (o1 as the case may be, in part) all the Debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the
mandatory l:di'uwu__w_ i respect of each Debenture
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¢) Details of disclosure required as per SEBI circular SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/71 dated 13 April 2018 are as follows

Particulars Secured / Previous due date Next due date
Unsecured
Principal Interest Princlpal Interest
Senior, Listed, Rated, Secured, Non-Cummulative, Taxable,| Secured Not 31-03-2022 |On Maturity 30-06-2022
Transferable, Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures Of Face Value Applicable
Of Rs 1000.000 (NCD Series 1}

£) Rating agency CRISIL has assigned a rating of “CRISIL AAA/Stable” to the NCI Series 1 of the lsauér / Sundew Propertied Limited. Subsequently there is no change in the credit rating,

Details of utllisation of proceeds of Debentures are as follows:

ObJects of the Issue as per the Issue Memorandum Proposed Actual Unutilised
utillsation utilisation  |amount as at

upto 31 31 March

March 2022

2022
Repayment of existing fi ial indebted (including ref of | 4,000 4,000 Nil
debt from Mindspace REIT) and Geneml corporate purposes including

of fees and exp in ion with the Issue
Total 4,000 4,000
VIBYe | o= L'I_I_lh}‘r_lll'l'ﬂ\\'lllg:
Particulars Asat3l Asat31
March 2022 | March 2021

Opening balance 8,944 14,212
Adi: Drawdown made during the year 5,602 4,620
l.ess Repayment during the year (Including Interest) 6,244 10,760
Adld: Interest expense for the year 473 866
Less: Processing foes paid during the year 12 -
Less: Transaction costs paid during the yeer 28 -
Add: Unwinding of processing fees for the yeu 1 f
Cloging Balance 8,736 LALE)
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Details of security and repaymen( (erms:

Nature of securilies Terms of repayment

(a) - Term loan and Bank Overdiafl from The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited is secured by way of charge on all piece and paicel Repayable in 120 monthly instalments of
of land bearing sub plot no 12C admeasuring 15,538 64 sq mirs (3 84 acies) logether with the building no. 12C having built -up aiea of about 780 varying amounts commencing from Oclober
lacs sq ft constructed thereon al SEZ project comprising of 40 25 acres land, and further secured by way of hypothecation of all present and future 2018
book debis, outstanding monies, receivables, claims due arising from Company's premises viz. building no 12C bearing Survey no, 64 {part) siluated at The loan cuirently cairies an interest 1ate of
Madhapw Village, Setilingmpally Mandal, Ranga Reddy Distiict, Hyderabad and also by a lien(including the right of set off) on the Deposit placed 6 60% per annum (3M T-BILL 3.67%+
wilh HSBC from time to time, including any interest accrued thereon and any renewals thereof from time to time and further, secured by way of charge spread 2 93%)
on all piece snd parcel of land bearing sub plot no 11 admeasuring about 12,008 46 sq. murs (2 96 acies) {de-notified SEZ Portion) together with the
building no 11 having built-up area of about 5.80 lacs sq {t constructed thereon at SEZ project comprising of 40 25 acres land, and further by way of
hypothecalion of all present and future book debts, outstanding monies, receivables, claims due arising from Company's premises viz building no 11
bearing Survey no 64 (part) situaled at Madhapur Village, Serilingmpally Mandal, Ranga Reddy District, Hyderabad. (refer note no 5)

(b)  Terms Loans and Bank Overdiaft from Standsrd Chartered Bank is secured by way of equitable mortgage through deposit of tille deeds, over the piece During the year, the Company has Fully
and parcel of the demarcaled portion of the land admeasuring about 14,456 45 sq mirs (3 57 acres) together with the building (hereon having leasable repaid the term loan on 14 June 2021 and
area admeasuring aboul 5 26 Lacs sq fi (Building No 14) and on the land admeasuring about 20,451 58 sq mtrs (5 05 acres) logether with the building due to thal charge on Buidiing no 14 and
thereon (Building No. 20} having leasable area admeasuring about 9 06 Lacs sq fi beating Survey No 64 (part) being and situated al Madhapur Building no 20 has been teleased
Village, Serilingmpally Mandal, Ranga Reddy District, Hyderabad, First and exclusive charge by way of hypothecation over present and future (refer note no 5)
receivables including the lease/rental income from the Morigaged Properties (Receivables)

(¢} Tenn loan and Bank Overdiaft from ICICI Bank is secured by way of charge on All the piece & paicel of Building 14 (ogether with sub-plot of land Repayable in 120 monthly instalments of
located at Survey no 64, situated a1 Madhapur Village, Serilngampally Mandal, Ranga Reddy District, Hyderabad admeasuring approximately varymg amounts
14,456 45 sq mtrs . having total leasable area of around 529,030 sq ft including all the structures thereon both present & future, along with all the The Rupee Tetm loan facility cuirently
development potential aiising thereon including addiuonal development potential in the form of TDR, premum FS1, etc, both piesent and future cariies an intetest rate of 6 85% per annum
( Property } and Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation on the Scheduled Recevables and all msuance proceeds, both present and fute (3M T-bill rate 3 90% « spread 2 95%%) and
pertaiming o the Property and Exclusive charge by way of hypothecauon on the Esctow Account along with all monies credited/deposited theremn (in the Overdrafl facility canies an interest rate
whalever form the same may be) and all investments m respect thereof (in whatever form the same may be) pertaining to the Property of 7 00% per annum

(d)  Loan from parent (Rs 750 (31 March 2021 Rs 4140 ) is 1epayable on May 2024 In case if parent defaults m performing its obligaion as Bullel 1epayment of Rs 750 million is due

contemplated by agreement or unable to fund or cease to control 51% of either economic or voting interest, the loan 1s repayable wiih a notice of 30 on 17 May 2024 Inlerest rale was ranging
berween 7 10 % - 7 50% per annum for the

financial year ended 31 March 2022 (31
March 2021 755% - 805%) in
accordance wath interest rate policy as
dopted by Mindsp B Parks
REIT Company has option to repay the loan
at anytime duiing the (enuie

days

{e) (1) The quarterly retums or statements of current asses filed by the Company with banks and financial institulions are in agreement wath the books of accounts
(i) Repaymenis lo Mindspace Business Parks REIT does not fall under definition mentioned in Clause (xvi} (A) - where company has advanced or loaned or invested funds

(ili) The Company has not taken any specific borrowings from banks and financial inslitulions as at 31 Maich 2022

(iv) No funds have been 1eceived by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing o1 otherwise, thal
the Company shall, directly or indirecily, lend or invest in other persons or entities idenlified in any manner whalsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ullimale Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

18  Other financial liabilities
Particulars

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 Maich 2021

Non - Current  Curreni  Non - Current Current

Retention money payable

-Due 1o Micro, Small and Medium Enlerpiises (including interest) - 40 5 33
~Others - 51 7 36
Security deposits 697 1,135 465 1.286
Interest accrued but not due on boriowings 150 13 11 20
Amount payable to customels - 43 - 35
Capital creditors
-Due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterpiises {including interest) - 38 - 187
-Others - 144 - 223
= 0 z .

Employee benefits payables

547 1464 488 1,820
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20

21

Pravisions
Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Non - Current_ Current  Nob = Cutront Current
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity 1 0 1 0
Provision for leave encashment 0 0 0 0
1 0 | 0
Other lighilitles
Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As a1 31 March 2021
Non - Current __ Current__ Non - Cuiient Curient
Uneamed rent 145 65 130 49
Advances received from customers 4 1 4 2
Statutory dues - 4 - 19
Other payables - 33 - 30
1449 (1] 134 1 licl
———
Frade payihles
Particulars Asat 31 Asat3l
March 2022 March 2021
Trade payables towards goods purchased and services rendeied
Micro and Small Enterprises (including mterest) 10 7
Others 77 70
87 77
Notes :-

(i) Trade payables a1« fii-interest bearing and are settled in accordance with the contract tenms with the vendors

The Company has financiil risk management policies in place 1o ensure that all payables are paid within the pre-agreed credit terms

(i1} Under Ihe Micio, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Acl, 2006, (MSMED) which came into force from 2 October 2006, cen

and Small enterprises

Jdisclosures are required to be made 1elating to Micro

(iii) Amounts due to micro and small enterprises (MSMED) as at 31 March 2022 was Rs 83 (31 March 2021 : 232) The informanion regaiding MSMED have been determined to the extent such

parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company.

Particilars As at 31 As at 31 Maich
Muaveh 2022 |°
Prneipul amount remnimig unpaid 10 any supplicr as af the year-end and Inierest due thereon 88 232
Amount of interest paid by the Company 1n terms of Section 16 of the MSMED, along with the amount of the paymeni g
maide to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the accounting year : -
Amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond (e
apponted day during the period) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED g i
Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting yeer 0 3
Amownt of further interest remaiming due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest
dues above the actually paid 1o the small enterprises, for the purpose of disallowance of deductible expenditure iindar - -
section 23 of MSMED.
As nt 31 March 2022 Ontstanding for the following period from the due date of payment
Particulars Unbllled Not Due Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total
dyear 3 vaars
MSME - 4 6 1] 0 - 10
Others 40 2 32 - 2 1 77
Disputed Dues - MSME - - - - - . =
||l|nElllcl.| Dues - Others - . 0 - - a [
"I‘a_ul 40 6 38 0 2 1 a7
Asal 31 March 2021 Oulstandiry for fhe following perod from the due date of pavment
Partjculars Unbilled Not Due Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total
lvear 3 vears
MEME . 2 5 4] . . 7
Others 33 1 35 1 [i] 0 70
Digputed Dues - MSME |
Disputed Dugs - Otliers - - B a . .
Tolal 33 3 40 1 0 0 i




Sundew Properties Limited
(CIN: U70102TG2006PLC050883)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts are in Rs. Millions unless otherwise stated)
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

22 Revenue from operations
Sale of services

- Facility rentals 3,726 2,892
- Maintenance services 654 541
Total (A) 4.380 3.433

Other operating income

Sale of surplus construction material and scrap 2 -
Interest income from finance lease 107 18
Revenue from work contract services (Net) - I

Total (B) ) 109 19

Total (A+B) 4,489 3452

23 Other income

Interest income on

- Fixed deposits with banks 5 10
- Electricity deposits 3 5
- loans to related parties 62 301
- Income tax refund 53 43
- Others 1 0
Gain on redemption of mutual fund units 1 1
Liabilities no longer required written back 11 24
Sundry balance written back 2 -
Miscellaneous income 23 0
161 384

24  Employee benefits expense

Salaries and wages 7 6
Contribution to provident and other funds 0 0
Gratuity expenses (refer note 33) 0 0
Compensated absences (refer note 33) 0 0
7 6
25  Finance costs
Interest expense on .
- borrowings from banks 326 844
- loans from parent/related parties 152 23
- lease liability 2 5
- others 1 2
- Non-convertible debentures 128 -
Interest on delayed payment of statutory dues 0 0
'Unwinding of interest expenses on security deposits 68 53
Other finance charges 11 15
688 942
Less: Finance cost capitalised to investment properties under construction (2) (11)
686 931

* The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs to be capitalised
_—js:lhgl\;cighlcd average interest rate applicable to the Company's general borrowing during
_.‘;'-‘ll:lt\}’ég]'-,',-lll this case 7.41 % (31 March 2021 : 8.30%)

"
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26 Depreciation expense

On property, plant and equipment
On investment property

Less: depreciation cost transferred to investment properties under construction (refer note 6)

27 Other expenses

Repairs and maintenance:

- Building

- Plant and machinery

- Electrical installation

- Others

Electricity, water and diesel charges
Property tax

Rates and taxes

Legal, professional and other fees
Communication costs

Travelling and conveyance

Payment to auditors' (refer note below)
Filing fees and stamping charges
Insurance

Bank charges and commission
Printing and stationery

Expenditure on corporate social responsibility (refer note 39)
Business promotion expenses/advertising expense
Project support fees (non-technical)
Advances written off

Provision for Doubtful Debts
Inventory written off

Directors' sitting fees

Miscellaneous expenses

Payment to auditors' (excluding goods and services tax)

As auditor:

- Statutory audit fees

- Tax audit fees

- for other services

- for reimbursement of expenses

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

25 26
366 299
391 325
- (0)
391 325
163 131

82 71

3 6

11 5

98 82

81 79

1 7
18 19
0 0
0 1
3 3
5 1
13 11
2 2
0 0
32 49
3 1
123 95
- 0
1 2
1 -
1 1
2 2
643 568
1 1
. 0
2 2
0 0
3 3




Sundew Properties Limited

(CIN: U70102TG2006PLC050883)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in Rs. Millions unless otherwise stated)

28

(a)

(b)

29

Other Commitments :

Project commitments

In accordance with the Scheme of arrangement which was approved by Hon’ble Andhra Pradesh High Court on 23 March 2007,
the Industrial Park II and III undertakings of K.Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited (formerly known as K.Raheja IT Park
(Hvderabad) Private Limited) ("KRIT") have been demerged and vested in the Company with effect from the appointed date i.c.
01 September 2006.

The Company has acquired the land at Madhapur, Hyderabad as part of the demerger scheme from KRIT. The said land is in lieu
of the employment opportunities to be generated by KRIT and others.

The liability, if any, arising due to the obligation to create the job opportunities for the entire larger land of which the above
property is a part, continues to be retained by KRIT as at 31 March 2022.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure Corporation Limited (‘'TSIIC') has returned the
original Bank Guarantees to KRIT and also confirmed to the bank that TSHC will not claim any amount from the bank under the
Bank Guarantees and the bank is relieved of its obligation Hence, no liability is recognised towards the price of the plot of land.

An unconditional obligation to pay amounts duc to Andhra Pradesh Industrial Infrastructure Corporation Limited ("APIIC") in
respect of APIC's claims of losses due to any difference in values pertaining to sale transactions ot the project undertaken by the
Company Losses incurred by the Government/TSIIC in its JV Company, if any, will be paid in full by K Raheja Corp Pvt Ltd and
it has furnished to the Company in writing, agreeing and admitting liability to make such payment to Government/TSIIC

The shareholding pattern of the Government/TSIIC in the JV Company and the Demerged company will not change as a result of
conversion from Private to Public, the Government / TSIIC equity of 11% will remain the same in the Company and all the
demerged companies and further in future, Government / TSTIC will not be asked to infuse further cash to maintain its 11% stake

Earnings per share

hanficulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021

Profit for the year 2,054 1.644
Calenlation of the weighted average number of shares:

Number of shares at the beginning of the period and at the end of the year 2,81,70,650 2,81,70,650
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year 2,81,70,650 2,81,70,650
Basic and diluted earnings per share (Rs) 7291 58.36

Face value per share (Rs) 10 10
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30 Disclosure in respect of lease:

(a)  Finance lease:
1 Brief description of the leasing arrangements
The Company’s leasing arrangements represents the fit-out’s or interior work completed for the customets which have been

classified under “Finance leases™. The lease terms are for tenure of 36 to 60 months, where substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are transferred to the lessees. The Company records disposal of the property concerned and recognises the subsequent

interest in the finance lease. No contingent rent is receivable.

2 Amounts receivable under finance leases
As at 31 March | Asat 31 March
2022 2021

Maturity analysis of finance lease payments
Year 1 239 136
Year 2 236 136
Year 3 237 136
Year 4 202 136
Year 5 24 103
Onwards = =
Lease payments - -
Unguaranteed residual values - -
Gross investment in the lease 938 647
Less : uneamed finance income (237) (193)
Present value of minimum lease pavments receivable 701 454
Impairment losses - -
Net investment in the lease 701 454

The finance lease receivables at the end of the reporting period are neither past due nor impaired.

Disclosure in respect of lease:
(a)  Operating lease:

Company as lessor:

The Company leases its investment property under non cancellable operating lease for a term of 36 months to 60 months. Initial
direct costs incurred on these leasing transactions have been recognised in the Statement of profit and loss over the lease term. The
lease arrangements with the customers have varied terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights. On renewal, the terms of the leases
are re-negotiated. During the year. an amount of Rs. 3.676 (31 March 2021: Rs 2.740) lease income has been recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. The following are the disclosures of lease rent income in respect of non-cancellable operating leases
during the year:

In the capacity as a lessor Asat31 March | Asat31 March
2022 2021

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases

Not later than one year 1,535 971

Later than one but not later than five years 3,712 2.504

Later than five years 439 -

Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

During the year property rentals of Rs 3,676 (31 March 2021 - Rs 2,740) have been included in revenue from operations (see note
22).
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Company as lessee:

Operating lease - cancellable

The Company has taken solar plants on lease and the same was terminated on 31 August, 2021

The following are the restrictions or covenants imposed by lessor:

The Company shall not sell or create lien on the leased asset or part thereof.

Amounts recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets
Interest expense on lease liabilities

Year ended 31
March 2022

Year ended 31
March 2021

2
2

The total cash outflow for leases amount to Rs. 4 (31 March 2021 Rs.8)

Maturity analvsis of Lease liability

Not later than 1 year
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years
|Later than § years

As at 31 March
2022

As at 31 March
2021

22
18
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31

U]

Segment information

Primary segment information
The primary reportable segment is business segments

Business segment

The Company is engaged in business 'Development and management of Real estate and Power distribution which are
determined based on the internal organisation and management structure of the Company, its system of internal financial
reporting and the nature of its risks and its retums. The board of directors of the Company has been identified as Chief
Operating Decision Maker (CODM). CODM evaluates the Company's performance, allocate resources based on analysis of
various performance indicators of the Company as disclosed below two operating segments

Real estate

Real estate comprises development of projects under Special Economic Zone (SEZ), Information Technology Parks and other
commercial segments for the purpose of letting out to ditferent customers. The Company has a project in Hyderabad for
development of commercial park

Power distribution

The Company has a power distribution system for supplying electricity to its consumers in the Company’s SEZ project at
Mindspace Cyberabad. Madhapur, Hyderabad

The Company has filed a Civil appeal on 15 November 2019 before the Hon'ble Supreme Court of India for obtaining the
Deemed distribution licensee status in terms of Ministry of Commerce and Industry Notification dated 3 March 2010 and Sec
14(b} of the Electricity Act, 2003 to operate and maintain a power distribution system for supplying electricity to its consumers
in the Company’s SEZ project at Mindspace Cyberabad, Madhapur, Hyderabad The Matter is pending before Hon'ble Supreme
Court of India Hence the business line has not started operations

Major customers:
There is no customer (31 March 2021 : one customer) who contributes more than ten per cent of revenue from operations of the
Company.

Customers Year ended 31 Year ended 31

March 2022 March 2021
Customer 1 - 496
Particulars Year ended 31 March 2022

Real estate Power distribution Unallocable Total
Segment revenue 4,489 - - 4,489
Segment result 3,560 22) (83) 3,455
Finance costs (70) - (616) (686)
Employee benefits expense - - ™) (©)]
Interest iIncome 66 - 58 124
Other income 36 - 1 37
Profit before tax 3,592 (22) (647) 2,923
Tax - - (#69) (869)
Profit after tax 2,054
Other information
Segment assets 14,206 578 365 15,149
Segment liabilities 2,482 - 9,716 12,198
Capital expenditure 704 - 28 732

Depreciation 368 21 2 391
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amn

(1

()
(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Particulars Year ended 31 March 2021
Real estate Power distribution Unallocable Total

Segment revenue 3,452 - - 3,452
Segment result 2,666 (26) (81) 2,559
Finance costs (58) - (873) (931)
Employee benefits expense - - 6) 6)
Interest income 307 - 53 360
Other income 24 - - 24
Profit before tax 2,939 (26) (907) 2,006
Tax - - (362) (362)
Profit after tax 1,644
Other information

Segment assets 14.272 445 546 15263
Segment liabilities 2,614 - 9,222 11,836
Capital expenditure 1.619 - 5 1,624
Depreciation 304 21 - 325

Secondary segment information
The Company's operations are based in India and therefore the Company has only one geographical segment - India

Segment accounting policies

Segment accounting policies are in line with accounting policies of the Company. In addition, the following specific accounting
policies have been followed for segment reporting:

Segment revenue includes income directly identifiable with the segments

Expenses that are directly identifiable with the segments are considered for determining the segment result Expenses which
relate to the Company as a whole and not allocable to segments and expenses which relate to the operating activities of the
segment but are impracticable to allocate to the segment, are included under "Unallocable expenses"

Income which relates to the Company as a whole and not allocable to segments is included in Unallocable Income and netted off
from Unallocable expenses.

Segment assets and liabilities include those directly identifiable with the respective segments. Unallocable corporate assets and
liabilities represent the assets and liabilities that relate to the Company as a whole and not allocable to any segment
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32 Tax
Tax expense
(a)  Amonnts recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Current tax expense 511 359
Deferred tax expense 358 3
Tax expense for the year 869 362 |

(b)  Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Particulars For the year ended |For the year ended 31
31 March 2022 March 2021

Profit before tax 2923 2.006
Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate (Current year 29 12%) 851 584
Tax effect of:

801AB benefit availment - (256)
Interest on late payment of TDS 0 0
CSR Expenses 9 14
Adjustment in MAT credit made in return of FY 2019-20 - 7
Other Permanent differences (2) 13
Reversal of MAT credit availed during previous yeal 1 -
Income tax expense 869 362

(¢} The major components of deferred tax assets arising on account of timing differences are as follows:

Particulars As al As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Deferred tax nssels:

On Finnnee lesse 8 -
Manvi alternate tax (MAT) eredit recevable 958 1,061
On difference between lease liability and leased nssel - |
1CDS interest 1 10
Provision for doubtful debis 0 |
On Guarantee Comnnssion Fees 0 -
On Others 0 -
Pravision for Employee henefits 1 [1]
968 1.073
Deferved tax labilities:
O strmght lining of lease rental income (98) 39)
On book WDV and income tux WDV (1,358) (1,127)
On amortisation of brokernge expenses - “n
O amortisation of processing (ees 3) (4]
On Fipance lesse - (3)
O fanr vl of securty deg 4 s
{1,463) (1.210)

Net deferred tax linbility {495} (137)
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32 Tax expense (Continued)

(d) Movement in deferred tax balances

31 March 2022
Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) Net Balance Recognised in Recognised MAT credit Net Deferred (ax asset  Delerred tax linbility
1 April 2021 | profit or loss in OC1 entitlement /
{utilised)
Deferved tax asset/ (liabilities)
(n difference between book (1,127) 231 - - (1,358) - (1,358)
WDV and income tax WDV
On difference between lease 1 n - - - - -
liabilities and lease asset
Brokerage Expenses 40 41 - B - - =
On straight lining of lease rental (39) (59) - - 98) - (98)
income
Processing fees (0) (3} - - 3) - (3)
Provision for Employee benefits 0 0 - E 0 0 -
Provision for doubtful debts 1 0) - - | | -
115 interest 10 9) - . 1 1
Finunce lease (3) 11 - . 8 R’
Fuit valuation of security deposil . (4) - - (4) - (41
Cuaraniee commission fees - 0 - . 0 0 .
Others - 0 - - 0 4] "
MAT credit receivable 1,061 - - (103) 958 958
MNel tax assets (liabilities) (137) (255) - (103) (495) 968 {1,461}

N Movement in deferred tax balances

31 March 2021

Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) Net Balance | Recognised in Recognised MAT credit Net Deferred tax asset  Deferred tax liability

1 April 2020 | profit or loss in OCI entitlement
Deferred tax asset/ (linbilities)
On difference between book (941) (186) - - (1,127) - (1,127
WDV and income tax WDV
(n difference between lease 1 0 - - 1 -
linbilities and lease asset
Broketage Expenses (12) (29) - . “n - “n
On straight lining of lease rental U] (32) - - (39) - 39)
incone
Processing fees 2) 2 - - ()] - 0)
Provision for Employee benefits 0 0 . - 0 0 .
Provision for doubtful debts - 1 - - 1 1 -
€18 interest 4 6 - - 10 10 .
Finance lease - 3 - - 3) . )]
MAT credit receivable 822 - - 239 1,061 1,061 a
Net tax assets (liabilities) {135) 242) - 239 (137) 1,073 (1.210)|

The Income Tax Act, 1961 (“Act”) provides domestic companies an option to pay corporate income tax at 22% plus applicable surcharge and cess subject to fulfilment of
certain conditions under Section 115BAA of the Act (“New Tax Regime”). For Financial statements drawn for the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, the Company
has not considered the tax 1ate as per the New Tax Regime and recognised current tax and deferied tax under the existing tax 1egime
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33 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS — 19 ‘Employee benefits’

a) Defined contribution plans

Contribution to Defined Contribution Plans, recognised as expense for the year is as under:

Particulars

Year ended 31
March 2022

Year ended 31 March
2021

Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund

b) Defined benefit plans

i. General description
Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of Defined Benefit Obligation

Particulars

Gratuity (Unfunded)

Year ended 31
March 2022

Year ended 31 March
2021

Defined Benefit Obligation at beginning of the year
Interest cost

Current service cost

Actuarial gain / (loss) on obligations

Benefit paid

Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of the year

S S -

—
oo

Fair value of Plan Assets

The Company does not have any plan assets and consequently, disclosures related to the plan assets have not been given

Particulars

Gratuity (Unfunded)

Expenses recognised during the year in Statement of Profit and Loss

Year ended 31
March 2022

Year ended 31 March
2021

Current service cost
Interest Cost

Return on Plan Asset
Net Cost

=

SO

<

Gratuity (Unfunded)

Discount Rate (per annum)

Expected rate of return on Plan Assets (per annum)
Rate of escalation in salary (per annum)

Rate of employee turn over

Year ended 31 Year ended 31 March
March 2022 2021

6.70% 6.06%

8.00% 8.00%

Service < 4 years
42.00%
Service >=§ years

5%

Service < 4 years
42.00%

Service >= 5 years
5%

The estimate of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, takes into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other

relevant factors including supply and demand in the employment market.

¢

2

Sensitivity Analysis

Significant Actuarial Assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and
employee turnover, The sensitivity analysis below, have been determined on resonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at end
of the reporting period, while holding all other assumtions constant. The result of Sensitivity analysis is given below:

Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
- Decrease Increase Decrease Increase
A€hangg in dikepunting rate (effect of +/- 1.0%) (0) 0 (0)
/\,f(‘ Jurfﬂ,'aﬁ F};\ \salary increase (effect of +/- 1.0%) 0 0) 0
Change n i mployee turnover (effect of +/- 1.0%) 0) 0 0)
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34
C.

(@)

Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (Continued)
Financial risk management (Continued)
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices — such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices — will affect the
Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The Company does not hold any equity investments in listed entities.
Hence, the Company is not exposed to any equity price risk.

Foreign currency risk management
The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies: consequently. exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise.

Exchange rate exposures are managed within approved policy parameters.

Un-hedged foreign currency exposure

There is no foreign currency exposure as at 31 March 2022.

Sensitivity analysis

The impact of sensitivity analysis due to change in exchange rate is not significant.
Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Company’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates to Fixed deposits and borrowings from banks.

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Fixed rate instruments
Financial assets -
Financial liabilities 3,972 E

Variable rate instruments
Financial assets 735 985
Financial liabilities 5,080 9,035

Interest rate sensitivity - variable rate instruments

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased / decreased equity and profit or
loss by amounts shown below. This analyses assumes that all other variables, in particular, foreign currency exchange rates, remain constant.
This calculation also assumes that the change occurs at the balance sheet date and has been calculated based on risk exposures outstanding as at
that date. The year end balances are not necessarily representative of the average debt outstanding during the year.

Profit or loss Equity
INR 100 bp increase 100 bp decrease 100 bp increase 100 bp decrease
31 March 2022
Variable-rate instruments 1) 51 - .
Cash flow sensitivity (net) (51) 51 - .
Profit or loss Equity
INR 100 bp increase 100 bp decrease 100 bp increase 100 bp decrease
31 March 2021
(90) 90 - -

mﬂﬂm

(90) 90 / ;V
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34 Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management

A Capital management
The Company’s objectives when managing capital are:
a to ensure Company's ability to continue as a going concem
b to provide adequate return to shareholders

Management assesses the capital requirements in order to maintain an efficient overall financing structure. The Company
manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and risk
characteristics of the undetlying assets

The Company monitors capital using a ratio of 'adjusted net debt' to ‘total equity’ For this purpose, adjusted net debt is
defined as total liabilities, comprising Interest-bearing loans and borrowings and obligations under finance leases, less cash,
cash equivalents and other bank balances. Total equity comprises all components of equity.

The Company’s adjusted nel debt to equity ratio at 31 March 2022 is as follows:

i As at 31 March 2022 | As at 31 March 2021
Particulars )
Borrowings 9,052 9,035
Leasc liability - 44
Gross debt 9,052 9.079
Less : Cash and cash equivalents 15 125
Adjusted net debt 9.037 8.954
Total equity 2,951 3427
Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio 3.06 2.61

B Categories of financial instruments

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their
levels in the fair value hierarchy. It does not include fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities not
measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value

Particulars Note No Carrying Value
As at 31 March 2022| As at 31 March 202]
Financial assets at amortised cost*
Trade receivables 12 49 51
Cash and cash equivalents 13 15 125
Other bank balances 14 35 44
Loans 8 735 985
Finance lease receivable 7 701 454
Unbilled revenue 7 336 132
Security Deposits 7 104 102
Interest receivable on loan given 7 - 0
Interest receivable on other / deposit 7 5 5
Deposits 7 117 107
Other receivables 7 5 31
2.102 2,036
Financial liabilities at amortised cost*
Borrowings 17 9,052 9,035
Security deposits 18 1,832 1,751
Trade payables 2] 87 77
Retention money payable 18 91 81
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 18 163 31
Creditors for capital goods 18 182 410
Lease liabilities 18 - 44
Amount payable to Customers 18 43 35
Employee benefits payables 18 (1] -
11.450 11.494

* The Company considers that the carrying amounts of these financial instruments recognised in the financial statements
approximates its fair values

C. Fi ial risk t

——TheCompany has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
o I Ge sk .
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34

C.

Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (Continued)

Financial risk management (Continued)

. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises
principally from the Company’s receivables from customers and investment securities. The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit
exposure.

Trade receivables

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the customer, including
the default risk of the industry and country in which the customer operates, also has an influence on credit risk assessment. Credit risk is managed through
credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the
normal course of business.

The Company has rented oul premises since 2009 and none of these customers balances are credit-impaired at the reporting date The Company obtains
security deposits from customers, so that in the event of non payment. the Company is able to recover the dues. Further, historical trends indicate any shortfall
between such deposits held by the Company and amounts due from customers have been negligible

Surmmary of the Company's exposure to credit risk by age of the outstanding from various customers is as follows:

Movement in the expected credit loss allowance For the year ended 31 | For the year ended 31
March 2022 March 2021

Balance at beginning of the year 2 1

Add: Provision made during the year 1

Less: Utilised during the year 3) (1)

Balance at the end of the year 0 2

Cash and cash equivalents

The Company holds cash and cash equivalents with credit worthy banks of Rs 15 and Rs 125 as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 respectively. The credit
worthiness of the such banks is evaluated by management on an ongoing basis and is considered to be good.

Other than trade receivables, the Company has no other financial assets that are past due but not impaired.
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34 Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (Continued)

C. Financial risk management (Continued)

iV Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financiul obligations as they become due. The Company manages its liquidity
risk by cnsuring. as far as possible. that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilitics when duc. under both normal and stressed
conditions. without incurring unacceptable losses or risk to the Company’s reputation,

I'he Company has oblained fund based working capital lines [rom various banks. Furthermore, the Company has access (o funds [rom bank and others.
The Company also constantly monitors funding options available in the debt and capital markets with a view to maintaining financial flexibility.

As at 31 March 2022, the Company has working capital of Rs (1842) including cash and cash cquivalents of Rs 15, As at 31 March 2021. the
Company had working capital of Rs (1999) including cash and cash equivalents of Rs 125,

Exposure to liquidity risk
I e table below analyse the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturing grouping based on their contractual maturities:

Contractual cash {lowy

As at 31 March 2022 Carrying Total I year or less 1-2 years 2-5 years More than
amount Svyears

Financial liabilities

Borrowings 9,052 9,052 639 391 6,427 1,595

Estimated interest payments - 1,804 500 477 674 153

Trade payables 87 87 87 - - -

Interest acerued but not due on borrowings 163 163 13 - 150

Creditors for capital goods 182 182 182 -

Other liabilitics - - - - -

Retention mongey payable 91 91 91 - - -

Interest [ree security deposits from customers 1,832 2,061 1,146 135 736 44

Amount payable to customers 43 43 43 - - -

11,450 13,483 2,701 1,003 7,987 1,792

Contractual cash Tows
As at 31 March 2021 Carrying l'otal | year or less 1-2 ycars 2-5 years More than
amount 5 years

Financial liabilitics

Borrowings 9.035 9.035 362 342 5.160 3171
Lstimated inlerest payments - 3.173 369 347 1.741 716
Lrade payables 77 77 77 - - -
Interest acerued but not due on borrowings 31 31l 20 - I -
Creditors Tor capital goods: 410 410 410 -

Other liabilities 30 30 30 - -

Retention money payable 81 81 69 12 -

Interest free seeurity deposits from customers 1.751 1.946 1.290 47 532 77
Leasc liabilites 44 44 4 5 17 14
Amount payable to customers 35 35 35 - -

11494 14862 2.660 753 7.461 3.982
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35 Related party disclosure

(A) Reluted party nnd their relntionshi

SrNo Category of related parties - o Names
1  Parent Mindspace Business Parks REIT
2 Fellow Subsidiary K Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited

Avacado Properties & Trading (India) Private Limited
Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited

Intime Properties Limited

Gigaplex Estate Private Limited

Horizonview Properties Private Limited

KRC Infiastructure and Projects Private Limited

3  Key Management Personnel Mr. Ravi Raheja
Mr. Neel Raheja
Mr. Vinod Rohira
Ms Preeti Chheda
Mr. Venkat Narsimha Reddy Ettireddy
Ms Swetha Jujjavarapu (CFO)
Mr Venna Narayana Reddy (CEO)
Ms Saadiya Naidu (CS) till 18th February 2022
Ms Pooja Karia (CS) w.e f 25th March 2022

4  Entity providing KMP services K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP

5  Entities controlled/jointly controlled by Key Managerial Birookfields Agro & Development Pvt Ltd
Personnel Cavalcade Properties Pvt Ltd
Grange Hotels and Properties Pvt. Ltd
Immense Properties Pvt Ltd
Novel Properties Pvt. Ltd
Pact Real Estate Pvt. Ltd
Paradigm Logistics & Distribution Pvt. Ltd
Sustain Properties Pvt. Ltd
Aqualine Real Estate Private Limited
Feat Properties Private Limited
Carin Properties Pvt. Ltd
Asterope Properties Private Limited
Immense Properties Pvt. Ltd.

Content Properties Private Limited
Grandwell Properties And Leasing Private Limited (till

10,11.2021)
Sundew Real Estate Pvt. Ltd.

(B) Transaction with related parties during the year:
The nature and volume of tr ions of the Company with the above related parties were as follows:

51 No. Particulars of transactions with related parties Year ended
31 March 2022

L Transactions during the period
1 Loans repaid taken by / from

Horizonview Properties Private Limited 250
Mindspace Business Parks REIT 750
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Sl No. Particulars of transactions with related parties Year ended
31 March 2022

2 Loans repaid to

Mindspace Business Parks REIT 4,140
3 Project Manag t Services / Busi pport services expense

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP 122
4 Interest income

Gigaplex Estate Private Limited 14

Horizonview Properties Private Limited 48
5 Interest expenses*

Mindspace Business Parks REIT 152
6 Dividend paid

Mindspace Business Parks REIT 2252
7 Guarantee Commission Fees from parent

Mindspace Business Parks REIT 4
8 Other finance charges

Mindspace Business Parks REIT 6

9 Property maintenance expense
KRC Infrastructure & Piojects Private Limited 101

10 Rent income
Intime Properties Limited
K Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited

(=R

11 Directors' sitting fees
Neel C Raheja
Ravi C.Raheja
Vinod N. Rohira
Preeti Chheda
Venkat Narsimha Reddy Ettireddy (TSIIC)

S oo o

)

Balances with related parties : As at 31 March 2022
1  Trade Payables
Intime Properties Limited 2

2 Other receivables
Mindspace Business Parks REIT 5
Vinod Rohira 0

3 Guarantee Commission Fees Payable
Mindspace Business Parks REIT 6

4  Loan receivable
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited 195
Horizonview Properties Private Limited 540

5  Loan payable
Mindspace Business Parks REIT 750

6  Trade Receivables

Intime Properties Limited 0
K Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited 0
7  Advances
KRC Infrastructure & Projects Private Limited 32
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP 2
8  Interest payable*
Mindspace Business Parks REIT 150
(D)  Non-Cash Transactions
Corporate guarantee extended by Parent towards loan taken from Bank:
Mindspace Business Parks REIT 3,315

Corporate gunrantee extended by Parent towirds Debentures issued:
Mindspace Business Parks REIT 4,000

edlufily fihd Corporate puarantee extended to Parent far Debentures issued by, Parent :

3,750
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35 Related party disclosures (Upto 30 July, 2020)

(A) Related party and their relationship:

SrNo Category of related parties Names
1  Shareholders Genext Hardware & Parks Private Limited
Ivory Properties And Hotels Private Limited
Cape Trading LLP

Anbee Constructions LLP

2  Key Management Personnel Mr. Neel Raheja
Mr. Ravi Raheja
Mr. Vinod Rohira
Mr. Siddhartha Gupta
Ms. Preeti Chheda
Mr. Venkat Narsimha Reddy Ettireddy
Ms. Swetha Jujjavarapu (CFO)
Mr. Venna Narayana Reddy (CEO)
Ms. Nidhi Biren Bhatt (CS)

3 Others* Chalet Hotels Limited
Intime Properties Limited
K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited
K.Raheja Corporate Services Private Limited
Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited
Newfound Properties And Leasing Private Limited
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited
Horizonview Properties Private Limited
Shoppers Stop Ltd

(B) Transaction with related parties during the period:
The nature and volume of transactions of the Company with the above related parties were as follows:

Sl No. Particulars of transactions with related parties For the period ended
31 July 2020

I.  Transactions during the period

1 Loans given

Newfound Properties And Leasing Private Limited 1,506
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited 195
Horizonview Properties Private Limited 1,030

2 Loans repaid

Newfound Properties And Leasing Private Limited 2,271
3 Property maintenance expense

Newfound Properties And Leasing Private Limited [Debited to Statement of P&L] 28

Newfound Properties And Leasing Private Limited [Prepaid in Balance Sheet] 3

4 Project Management Services / Business support services expense
K.Raheja Corporate Services Private Limited 70




SI. No. Particulars of transactions with related parties For the period ended
31 July 2020

5 Interest income

Newfound Properties And Leasing Private Limited 220

Gigaplex Estate Private Limited 0

Horizonview Properties Private Limited 6
6 Rent income

Intime Properties Limited 0

K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited 0
7 Rent expense

Genext Hardware & Parks Private Limited 3
8 Other Expenses

Shoppers Stop Ltd 0

9 Directors' sitting fees
Neel C.Raheja
Ravi C.Raheja
Vinod N. Rohira
Preeti Chheda
Venkat Narsimha Reddy Ettireddy (TSIIC)

S oo oo

* Considering that the control of the Company is collectively with all the equity share holders, the related party condition
under the Accounting Standards is applicable to the Company and accordingly disclosures are made. However, considering
the materiality of certain inter-company transactions with K. Raheja Group companies (although not with any related party
as per accounting standards, as aforesaid), additional disclosures of such inter-company transactions have also been made.

The Company has entered into agreement with Chalet Hotels Limited for leasing the Hotel Building having chargeable area
approximately 1,27,398 sqft in consideration of Lease rent for period of 33 years.The Company has given option to Chalet
Hotels Ltd of further subsequent renewal of 33 years.

(©) Non-Cash Transactions
Guarantee given by K. Raheja Corp Private Limited to APIIC on behalf of K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited
Corporate Gurantee given by K. Raheja corp Private Limited to IOB for issuing L.C of Rs 16.
Security and Counter indemnity given by Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited for LC of Rs. 4.




Sundew Properties Limited

(CIN: U70102TG2006PLC050883)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)
(Al amounts are in Rs. Millions unless otherwise stated)

35 Related party disclosure (from 01st August, 2020)

(A) Related party and their relationship:

SrNo Category of related parties Names
1  Parent [w.e.f. 30.07.2020] Mindspace Business Parks REIT
2 Fellow Subsidiary [w.e.f. 30.07.2020] K Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited

Avacado Properties & Trading (India) Private Limited
Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited

Intime Properties Limited

Gigaplex Estate Private Limited

Horizonview Properties Private Limited

KRC Infrastructure and Projects Private Limited

3 Key Management Personnel Mr. Ravi Raheja
Mr Neel Raheja
Mr. Vinod Rohira
Ms. Preeti Chheda
Mr Venkat Narsimha Reddy Ettireddy
Ms Swetha Jujjavarapu (CFO)
Mr Venna Narayana Reddy (CEO)
Ms Nidhi Biren Bhatt (CS) (upto 11 11 2020)
Ms Saadiya Naidu (CS) (from 12 11 2020)

4  Entity providing KMP services [w.e.f. 30.07.2020]
K Raheja Corp Investinent Managers LLP

5  Entities controlled/jointly controlled by Key Managerial Brookfields Agro & Development Pvt. Ltd
Personnel Cavalcade Properties Pvt. Ltd.

Grange Hotels and Properties Pvt. Ltd.
Immense Properties Pvt. Ltd
Novel Properties Pvt Ltd
Pact Real Estate Pvt. Ltd
Paradigm Logistics & Distribution Pvt Ltd
Sustain Properties Pvt. Ltd.
Aqualine Real Estate Private Limited
Feat Properties Private Limited
Carin Properties Pvt. Ltd.
Asterope Properties Private Limited
Immense Properties Pvt. Ltd
Content Properties Private Limited
Grandwell Properties and Leasing Private Limited
Sundew Real Estate Pvt. Ltd.

(B) Transaction with related parties during the period:
The nature and volume of transactions of the Company with the above related parties were as follows:
SI. No. Particulars of transactions with related parties For the period Aug 20 to
Mar 2021
1 Transactions during the period

1 Loans given
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited -
Horizonview Properties Private Limited -

2 Loans repaid by
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited -
Horizonview Properties Private Limited 240

3 Loans taken
Mindspace Business Parks REIT 4,620




SI. No. Particulars of transactions with related parties For the period Aug 20 to

Mar 2021

4 Loans repaid

Mindspace Business Parks REIT 480
5 Project Management Services / Business support services expense

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP 62
6 Interest income

Gigaplex Estate Private Limited 10

Horizonview Properties Private Limited 55
7 Interest expenses

Mindspace Business Parks REIT 23
8 Dividend paid

Mindspace Business Parks REIT 1,257
9 Miscellaneous income

Mindspace Business Parks REIT 0

10 Property maintenance expense
KRC Infrastructure & Projects Private Limited 48

11 Rent income
Intime Properties Limited 0
K Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited

(=1

12 Directors’ sitting fees
Neel C.Raheja
Ravi C Raheja
Vinod N. Rohira
Preeti Chheda
Venkat Narsimha Reddy Ettireddy (TSIIC)

(=R o i =1

i Balances with related parties : As at 31 March 2021
1  Trade Payables
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP 9
Intime Properties Limited
KRC Infrastructure & Projects Private Limited -
Neel C Raheja
Ravi C.Raheja
Vinod N. Rohira
Preeti Chheda
Venkat Narsimha Reddy Ettireddy (TSIIC)

[ 8]

SO O OO

2 Other receivables
Mindspace Business Parks REIT 0

3 Loan receivable
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited 195
Horizonview Properties Private Limited 790

4  Loan payable
Mindspace Business Parks REIT 4,140

5  Interest payable
Mindspace Business Parks REIT 11

6  Interest receivable
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited -
Horizonview Properties Private Limited

(D) Non-Cash Transactions

ebentures issued by Parent
3,750
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Sundew Properties Limited

{CIN: U70102TG2006PLC050883})

Notes fo (he Financial Statemenis for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in Rs Millions unless olheiwise stated)

37

38

39

40

Capital i and ingenci
As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Estintnted amount of contracts remaining to be execuled on capilal account and not provided for (net of 166 434
advances)
Demand for Interest and Penalty on account of wiong availment of ciedit of service tax paid on input 0 0
feniIces
Demand for Non Payment of service tax on renting of filouts and equipments 1 |
Demand for Non Payment of service tax on renting of fitouts and equipmenis 0 i

The Compeny has provided continuing guarantee in favour of the Debenture Truslee for discharge of the Debt by Mindspace Business Parks REIT (oulstanding amount Rs 3,750)

Demand for Non Payment of service tax on renting of fitouts and equipments Rs.! and Demand for Interest and Penalty on account of wrong availment of credit of service tax paid on inpul
services Rs 0 The Company has filed an appeal with CESTAT and matter is pending
Future Cash outflow in respect of above, if any, is determinable only on receipt of judgements / decisions pending wilh relevant authorities

Corporate social responsibility

Particulars For the year ended 31 March 2022 For the year ended 31 March 2021
Anonni 1equired to be spent by the Company during the yeal 32 24
Amount of expenditure incuired 14 19
Shortfall a1 the end of the year 18 5
Tolal of previous years shorfall Is 25
Reason for shortfall
Matuie of CSR activities 1. Covid 19 Relief Initiatives - 1 Restoralion & Beautificanon ol
Promoting Healthcare Durgam Chenivu Lake - Mumimainig
Environmenial Sustainability wiil

Ecological Balance

2 Setting up of Educahon Insutution -
Promoting Education

3 Covid 19 Relief Intiatives - Promoting
Healthcare

4. Support for women conclave

5. Suppont for running the home fut
elderly senior citizen shelter

Details of related party transactions, e g.. contribution to a trust controlled by the Company m relation to Not Applicable Not Applicable
CSR expendilure as per relevant Accounting Standard
Where a provision 1s made with respect lo a liability incurred by ing into a ¢ | obligation, the Not Applicable Not Applicable

movements in the provision during the year should be shown separately

Ind AS 115 disclosure

For the year ended 31 March 2022 For the year ended 31 March 2021

Nate 1: Reconciliation of revenue from operations recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss with
Revenue from contracts with customers
A. Revenue from contracts with customers

Maintonanee services 654 541
Sale of surplus construchon materal and serap 2 -
Revenue from work contraet services (Net) - 1
Total - A 656 542
B. Facility rentals

Facility rentals 3,726 2,892
Interest income from finance leases 107 18
Total - B 3,833 2910
Revenue from operations (A+B) 4,489 3,452
Note 2: Contract Balances

Confract Assels

Trade Receivables 40 29
Contract Liabilities

Advance for maintenance 27 32

Interim Dividends
The Board of Diteclors, in its meeting on 22 June 2021 appioved an interim dividend of Rs 27 69 per equity share, interim dividend of Rs 780 has been paid in June 2021

The Board of Directors, in ils ing on 24 September 2021 app! d an interim dividend of Rs 24 85 per equity share, interim dividend of Rs 700 has been paid in September 2021

The Board of Directors. in ils meeting on 23 December 2021 approved an interitn dividend of Rs 19 52 per equity share, oul of total interim dividend Rs 550, Rs 489 50 has been paid in the
month of December 2021 and balance Rs 60.50 has been peid in the motnh of January 2022

The Board of Direclors, in its meeting on 25 March 2022 approved an interim dividend of Rs 17 75 per equity share, interim dividend of Rs 500 has been paid in Maich 2022
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
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42

43

44

45

Other Information

Additional Information Disclosure Pursuant to Schedule 1Tl of Companies Act, 2013 as per MCA notification dated March 24, 2021

(i) The Company does not have any Immovable Properties not held in its own name
(ii) No p dings has been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami T} i Prohibition) Act 1988 (as ded in 2016) and
rules made thereunder

(iii) The Company does not have any transactions with Struck Off Companies

(iv) The Company has not entered into any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts thal has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax

assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961
(v) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virlual Currency during the year ended 3| March 2022

(vi) The Company is not declared wilful defaulter by Bank or Financial Institution

(vii) The Company has not witnessed eny deley in filing of Registration of Charges.

Title litigation and irregularities
The Office of the Land Reforms Tribunal Cum Deputy Collector & Special Grade Revenue Divisional Officer, Atiapur (“Tribunal™) had, by letter dated 27 August 2009, sought information

from the Company under Section 8(2) of the Andhra Pradesh Land Reforms (Ceiling on Agriculture Holdings) Act, 1973 ("APLRAC"} in respect of the entire land parcel at Mindspace
Madhapur

The Revenue Department of the Governmment of Andhra Pradesh forwarded a Memo dated 5 September 2009 for fumishing of certain information to the Government of Andhra Pradesh,
including information requested by the letter dated 27 August 2009 The Company had filed a detniled resp on 30 September 2009 stating that (a) the land was originally granted by the
Government of Andhra Pradesh to K Raheja IT Park Hyderabad Limited (KRIT) which was a joint venture company with Andhra Pradesh Indusirial Infrastructure Corporation Limited, (b)
the land was vesled in the Company by way of demerger order of the Andhra Pradesh High Court, (¢} the land has been declared as an SEZ and is therefore exempt from the local laws; (d)
{he land was shown as a non-agricultural land in the master plan of Hydeiabad and is therefore not “land” covered under the APLRAC The Tribunal issued a final notice to the Company in
January 2012 requesting to submit a declaration for full and correct particulars of the lands held The matter is currenily pending before the Tribunal

A of possible impact resulting from Covid-19
The M has idered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating 10 COVID-19 on the operations and camying of property, plant and equip
1 Property, T Property under Construction, Inventories, receivables and olher assets The Managemenl, as at the date of approval of these financial statements, has used

intemal end exiemal sources of information to determine the expecied future impact of COVID-19 pandemic on the performance of the Company The Managemenl based on current
estimates expecls lhe carmying amount of the essets to be recovered However, due to the evolving nature of the pandemic and its response by various government authorities the Management
will inue to monitor develop to identify significant impacts, if any, on the operations

Note: "0" represents value less han Rs 0 5 million

Previous years comparitives
Previous yeai figures ale d wh Ty to correspond with the current year classification / disclosure

group

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Sundew Properties Limited
CIN: U70102TG2006PLC 050883

-
Vinod N, Rohira Preeti N. Chheda
Director Director
DIN : 00460667 DIN : 08066703
Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date: 11 May 2022 Date: 11 May 2022
e =
i{' ¥~ Ve 2
Vehna N. Reddy wella Jijjavarapn Pooja Karia
Chief Executive Officer Chief financial officer Company Secretary
Place : Hyderabad Place : Hyderabad Place : Mumbai

Date: 11 May 2022 Date: |1 May 2022 Date: 11 May 2022



Sundew Properties Limited

K RAHEJA
CORP

SUNDEW PROPERTIES LIMITED
CIN: U70102TG2006PLC050883

Regd. Office: Mindspace, Cyberabad, S. No. 64(Part), next to VSNL Building, Hitech City, Madhapur,
Hyderabad — 500081

PROXY FORM

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]
Y

Name of the member (s)
Registered address

E-mail Id
Folio No/ Client Id:
DR.ID

I/We, being the member (s) of shares of the above-named company, hereby
appoint

1. Name:_

Address:

Email ID:

Or failing him
2. Name:_

Address:

Email ID:

or failing him
3. Name:_

Address:

Email ID;

and whose signature(s) is/are appended below as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for

CIN: U70102TG2006PLC050883
Regd. Office: Mindspace Cyberabad, S. No, 64(Part), Next to VSNL Building, Hitech City, Madhapur,
Hyderabad, Telangana-500081.Phone: +91-40-6628 0000, Fax No. +91-40-6628 0065
Website: https://sundewproperties.com




Sundew Properties Limited N

K RAHEJA
CORP

me/us and on my/our behalf at the 16! Annual General Meeting of the Members of
Sundew Properties Limited will be held on Thursday, June 23, 2022 at 03.15 p.m. the
Registered Office of the Company and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such
resolutions as are indicated below:

Ordinary Business:

Resolution Particulars

No.

1. To receive, consider, approve and adopt the Audited Standalone Financial
Statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2022, together
with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Statutory Auditors thereon

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Ravi C. Raheja who retires by rotation and

B being eligible offered himself for re-appointment

Special Business:

Resolution | Particulars
No.
3. To approve the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for cost audit to be
conducted for the financial year 2022-2023
Signed this , 2022 Affix
Revenue
Stamp
Signature of Shareholder
Signature of the 1st Proxy Signature of the 2nd Proxy Signature of the 3rd Proxy
holder holder holder

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the
Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the
Meeting.

CIN: U70102TG2006PLC050883
Regd. Office: Mindspace Cyberabad, S. No. 64(Part), Next to VSNL Building, Hitech City, Madhapur,
Hyderabad, Telangana-500081.Phone: +91-40-6628 0000, Fax No. +91-40-6628 0065
Website: https://sundewproperties.com
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SUNDEW PROPERTIES LIMITED
CIN: U70102TG2006PLC050883

Regd. Office: Mindspace, Cyberabad, S. No. 64(Part), next to VSNL Building, Hitech City,Madhapur,
Hyderabad — 500081

ADMISSION CARD

Folio No./Client Id.

DP Id: ’

PLEASE COMPLETE THIS ADMISSION CARD AND HAND IT OVER AT THE ENTRANCE OF THE
MEETING HALL.

I/wé hereby record my/our presence at the 16" Annual General Meeting of the Members of Sundew
Properties Limited being held on Thursday, June 23, 2022 at 03.15 p.m. at the Registered Office of
the Company.

MEMBER’S NAME (in block capital)

PROXY’S NAME (in block capital)

MEMBER’S/PROXY’S SIGNATURE:

CIN: U70102TG2006PLC050883
Regd. Office: Mindspace Cyberabad, S. No. 64(Part), Next to VSNL Building, Hitech City, Madhapur,
Hyderabad, Telangana-500081.Phone: +91-40-6628 0000, Fax No. +91-40-6628 0065
Website: https://sundewproperties.com






